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II~~EpENDENT AUI)ITC~RS~ REPi~► RT  

City Council of the City of Ojai 
{Jjai, California 

Rep©rt on the Financial Statements 

~e have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of C)jai, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 ~, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

1Vlanngement's Respansibility far the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Cur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in ~ove~nment tluc~iting 
StandarA~s, issued by the Comptroller general of the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

~e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining information of the City of (.jai, as of June ~0, 2019, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

2400 Professional Parkway, Sulfie 205 Santa Maria, CA ?3455 Tel 805.925.25~~ Fax ~05.925.214~ mlhrpas.com  

BEVERLY HILLS • CECLVER CITY • SAi~ITA MARIA 



Other Matters 

Required Szcp~lementary IM, formation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on page 3 through  
i  7, the budgetary comparison information on pages E3 through 64, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability on page b5, the 
schedule of pension contributions on page ~6, the schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios on page f 7, and the schedule of 
OPEB contributions on page ~~, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. ~Ve do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Qther Supplemental ~n, formation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Ojai's basic fïnancial 
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and combining private-purpose trust funds financial 
statements, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and combining private-purpose trust funds financial statements are 
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by ~avertztnentAiccliting S'tc~ntlr~rtls 

In accordance with ~©vernnzent Auditing Standar°ds, we have also issued our repol-í dated January 15, 2020, on our consideration of the City of Ojai's 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

~ , ~ , ~ ~,~ . 
', 

~ .r' 

Santa  Fiaria,  California 
January 15, 2020 
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 CITY OF OJAI 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 

 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
This section of the City of Ojai’s annual financial report presents management’s discussion and 
analysis of the financial performance of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Basic 
Financial Statements and the Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 

 
Financial Highlights 
 The government-wide total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities 

and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2019 by $20.4 million (total net position).  The 
net position invested in capital assets was approximately $20.1 million (98.5%), the 
unrestricted net position was approximately negative $531,000 (-2.6%) and approximately 
$846,000 (4.2%) was restricted.  The unrestricted total net position at June 30, 2019 
increased approximately $721,000 from the prior year, while the restricted net position 
increased approximately $247,000. 

 
 At June 30, 2019, fund balances in the City’s governmental funds totaled approximately $7.5 

million, an increase of approximately $853,000 from the prior year.  Governmental fund 
assets totaled $9.08 million, an increase of approximately $127,000 from the prior year 
balance, and total governmental fund liabilities totaled $1.6 million, a decrease of 
approximately $727,000 from the prior year balance.   

 
 At June 30, 2019, the “Unassigned” fund balance in the City’s General Fund was $4.1 

million, (approximately 42.1% of total General Fund operating expenditures for the current 
fiscal year).  The balance increased by approximately $577,000 from the $3.5 million June 
30, 2018 Unassigned fund balance, (which was approximately 38.3% of total General Fund 
operating expenditures). 

 
 As shown in Note 7, non-current liabilities of the governmental and business-type activities 

total $9.3 million, a decrease of approximately $330,000 from the prior year.  In FY 18-19 
City of Ojai governmental and business type revenues increased from prior year by $1.1 
million and $280,000, respectively.  Despite the closure of one hotel since the Thomas Fire 
in FY 17-18 the big three revenue sources, property tax, sales tax, and TOT increased by 
$239,000, $190,000, and $366,000 respectively. 

 
 The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement 75 

(“GASB 75”) FY 17-18, which increased the OPEB liability that is required to be included in 
the financial statements and City accounts. The impacts of the reduction in the discount rate 
on pension costs and liabilities have had a significant impact on the liabilities shown in the 
statements and notes.  In FY 18-19, this net pension liability decreased by $246,000, but 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) liability increased by approximately $19,000. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an overview of the City of Ojai's basic 
financial statements.  The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic 
financial statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements.  
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Government-wide Financial Statements:  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Ojai's finances, in a manner 
similar to a private-sector business. 

 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows with the difference as net position.  Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
City is improving or deteriorating. 

 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position 
changed during the current fiscal year.  This statement reports all direct and indirect expenses 
reduced by program revenues, resulting in a measurement of “net revenue over (under) 
expenses” for each function. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash in-
flows and out-flows in future fiscal periods. 

 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all, or a portion of their costs, through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the City include general 
government, public safety, public works, community development, parks and recreation, libraries, 
and housing.  The business-type activities of the City include public transit and a public cemetery.  
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report. 

 
Fund Financial Statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

 
Governmental funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in government-wide financial statements.  However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on current sources and uses of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental funds’ balance sheet and the governmental funds’ 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances, provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

 
The City maintains thirteen (13) separate governmental funds.  The basic governmental funds’ 
financial statements are found on pages 22-28.  The General Fund , and Capital Improvements 
Fund, are considered “major funds” and information for these funds is presented separately in the 
governmental funds statements.  Data from the other nine (9) governmental funds are combined 
into a single aggregated amount and is shown under the caption of Other Governmental Funds.  
Data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining 
statements and can be found on pages 71-74 in the Other Supplemental Information section of 
this report. 
 



 

 5

Proprietary funds:  Enterprise funds are presented as business-type activities on pages 26-28 
of this report.  The City maintains two individual enterprise funds to account for its local transit 
services and its public cemetery operations.   

 
Proprietary funds statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail.  The proprietary funds’ financial statements provide 
separate information for the transit and cemetery operations.   

 
Fiduciary funds:  Fiduciary funds are used to account for situations where the City’s role is purely 
custodial.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because 
the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s programs.  All assets reported 
in agency funds are offset by liabilities.  The fiduciary funds’ financial statements can be found on 
pages 29-30 of this report. 

 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements:  The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.  The notes to the basic financial statements begin on page 31 of this report. 

 
Other Information:  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information.  The required supplementary 
information can be found on pages 63-68 of this report. 

 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Statement of Net Position 
Table 1 provides information on the City’s financial positions as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.  As 
noted earlier, the changes in net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a 
government's financial position.  The total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded 
total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources for all city activities by approximately $20.4 million 
and $20.7 million for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The City’s total net 
financial position decreased by approximately $283,000 from the previous year.  
 
As previously noted, approximately 98.5% of the net position in the City’s Governmental Activities 
is net investment in capital assets at the end of the current year.  This investment in capital assets 
(net of accumulated depreciation) decreased 4.7% ($1.3 million) from the previous year.  Most of 
this decrease was the result of infrastructure projects being completed, the majority of these 
projects were part of the ongoing improvements to the city’s streets. The City uses capital assets 
to provide services to citizens and they are not available for future spending.  With the exception 
of business-type assets, most capital assets do not generate direct revenue for the City.  Although 
the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that there 
is no debt associated with the capital assets of the governmental or business-type activities. 
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As shown in Table 1, approximately $846,000 restricted portion of the City’s total net position in 
the governmental activities represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how 
they may be used.  The remaining portion of net position is unrestricted and represents resources 
that can be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  The 
governmental activities unrestricted portion is currently negative by approximately $749,000.  
Total City’s long-term liabilities amounted to $9.3 million.  Of the $9.3 million, $293,000 is due to 
compensated absences (i.e. vacation and sick leave), $3.8 million is from OPEB retiree medical 
coverage (an increase of approximately $19,000), and $5.1 million is due to net pension liabilities 
(a decrease of approximately $246,000).  The OPEB and pension liabilities are determined by 
actuarial studies based on many factors including: funds set aside in trust to pay future liabilities, 
the discount rate (assumed rate of return on investment plan assets) used in the computation, 
retiree longevity, current salaries of employees, benefit formulas, and actual investment returns 
on plan assets. 
  
The City has taken several steps to reduce the liability for retiree-health benefits.  As discussed 
in Note 7, City Council has reduced benefits for future retirees to reduce the OPEB liability.  
Additionally, the City began funding a trust to pay for future retiree-health benefits at a rate of 
$100,000 per year beginning in fiscal year 2015.  At June 30, 2019, the balance in the trust totaled 
approximately $546,000. 
 
Statement of Activities 
Table 2 provides information on the City’s operations in the Statement of Activities for fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

ASSETS 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets 6,770,323$    6,145,474$        708,810$     611,760$       7,479,133$    6,757,234$       

Due from successor agency 2,242,407      2,504,780          -               -                 2,242,407      2,504,780         
Capital assets 19,167,233    20,726,919        894,366       585,128         20,061,599    21,312,047       

Total assets 28,179,963    29,377,173        1,603,176    1,196,888      29,783,139    30,574,061       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to OPEB 298,647         275,885             11,574         20,043           310,221         295,928            

Related to pensions 1,468,155      1,674,879          80,733         106,857         1,548,888      1,781,736         
Total deferred outflows 1,766,802      1,950,764          92,307         126,900         1,859,109      2,077,664         

LIABILITIES
Long-Term liabilities 8,671,022      8,856,593          517,299       636,175         9,188,321      9,492,768         

Other liabilities 1,564,292      2,080,508          43,952         78,294           1,608,244      2,158,802         
Total liabilities 10,235,314    10,937,101        561,251       714,469         10,796,565    11,651,570       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to OPEB -                 773                    -               56                  -                 829                   

Related to pensions 446,991         318,825             22,152         21,160           469,143         339,985            
446,991         319,598             22,152         21,216           469,143         340,814            

NET POSITIONS
Net investment in capital assets 19,167,233    20,726,919        894,366       585,128         20,061,599    21,312,047       

Restricted 846,433         599,472             -               -                 846,433         599,472            
Unrestricted (749,206)        (1,255,153)         217,714       2,975             (531,492)        (1,252,178)       

Total net position 19,264,460$  20,071,238$      1,112,080$  588,103$       20,376,540$  20,659,341$     

TABLE 1

CITY OF OJAI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
Governmental

Activites
Business-Type

Activites Total
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Governmental Activities Revenue 
Revenues of the Governmental Activities include charges for services, contributions and grants, 
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other revenues.  Total revenue for Governmental 
Activities was approximately $12.1 million, an increase of approximately $1.1 million (10.2%) from 
the previous year’s revenues.  Tax revenues totaled $7.5 million, an increase of $828,000 (12.3%) 
from the prior year.  TOT, sales tax, and property tax (“Big Three”) revenues accounted for 
approximately 61.6% of total revenues and accounted for approximately $795,000 of the increase.   
TOT revenues accounted for approximately 30.8% of total revenues. Sales tax revenues 
increased by $190,000 (12.2%) from the prior year. Property tax revenues accounted for 
approximately 16.2% of total revenues; property tax revenues increased $239,000 (14.0%) from 
the prior year.   

Transient Occupancy 
tax 3,713,450 

28%

Charges for 
service

2,492,804 
19%

Property taxes
1,951,016 

15%

Intergov
1,995,241 15%

Sales tax
1,753,908 

13%

Motor vehicle in lieu
870,286 

7% Other Revenues
462,326 

3%

CHART 1
Government-Wide Revenues

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
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Governmental Activities Expenses 
Expenses of Governmental Activities (excluding transfers) totaled approximately $12.6 million, an 
increase of $2.1 million (19.4%) from the prior year.  General government expenses include the 
City Council, City Manager, City Treasurer, City Attorney, Finance, City Clerk, And Non-
Departmental departments.  General government expenses increased approximately $513,000 
(24.4%).  The increase is due to moving the PERS unfunded liability from each department budget 
to non-departmental .  Public Safety expenses increased approximately $185,000 (5.4%) from 
the prior year due to cost-of-living increases from the Sheriff’s Department. Public Works 
expenses increased by $677,000 due to the recognition of depreciation of existing assets as well 
as new purchases.  Increases to the remaining functional programs were also affected by  the 
recognition of depreciation expense due to the full accrual basis of accounting. 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues:

Charges for services 2,378,482$    2,503,795$     114,322$     192,548$   2,492,804$      2,696,343$     
Operating contributions and grants 630,499         512,940          1,056,411    714,803     1,686,910        1,227,743       

Capital contributions & grants 308,331         258,381          -               -            308,331           258,381          
Property taxes 1,951,016      1,711,949       -               -            1,951,016        1,711,949       

Sales taxes 1,753,908      1,563,838       -               -            1,753,908        1,563,838       
Transient occupancy taxes 3,713,450      3,347,394       -               -            3,713,450        3,347,394       

Other 127,489         94,509            -               -            127,489           94,509            
Motor vehicle in lieu 870,286         831,779          -               -            870,286           831,779          
Investment earnings 141,610         61,872            5,782           1,430         147,392           63,302            

Miscellaneous 175,595         50,684            11,850         -            187,445           50,684            
Total Revenues 12,050,666    10,937,141     1,188,365    908,781     13,239,031      11,845,922     

Expenses:
General government 2,613,420      2,100,499       -               -            2,613,420        2,100,499       

Public safety 3,585,337      3,400,798       -               -            3,585,337        3,400,798       
Public works 3,273,649      2,596,236       -               -            3,273,649        2,596,236       

Community development 1,248,118      1,079,889       -               -            1,248,118        1,079,889       
Parks & recreation 1,224,410      1,061,144       -               -            1,224,410        1,061,144       

Libraries 111,620         111,620          -               -            111,620           111,620          
Unallocated depreciation 586,917         235,157          -               -            586,917           235,157          

Transit activities -                 -                  864,227       865,927     864,227           865,927          
Cemetery activities -                 -                  14,134         22,247       14,134             22,247            

Total expenses 12,643,471    10,585,343     878,361       888,174     13,521,832      11,473,517     

Net revenue over (under) expenses (592,805)        351,798          310,004       20,607       (282,801)         372,405          
before transfers -                  -                  

Transfers (213,973)        8,306              213,973       (8,306)       -                  -                  
(806,778)        360,104          523,977       12,301       (282,801)         372,405          

Net position - beginning of fiscal year 20,071,238    20,661,592     588,103       833,589     20,659,341      21,495,181     
Prior period adjustment -                 (950,458)         -               (257,787)   -                  (1,208,245)      

Net Position - beginning of 
fiscal year, restated 20,071,238    19,711,134     588,103       575,802     20,659,341      20,286,936     

Net position - end of fiscal year 19,264,460$  20,071,238$   1,112,080$  588,103$   20,376,540$    20,659,341$   

Activites Activites Total

CITY OF OJAI
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
Governmental Business-Type

TABLE 2
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Business-type Activities: The net position from the City’s Business-type Activities increased by 
approximately $524,000 from the prior year; however, this increase is due to Operating 
contributions and grants received in the amount of $342,000 and an increase in transit net 
transfers by $222,000 from prior year.  Revenues from business-type activities increased 
approximately $280,000 (30.8%) from the prior year.  Trolley user revenues provide only $75,000 
(6.3%), of the total revenues of the Transit Fund and remaining revenues come from federal, 
state, and local grants.  Farebox revenues for the trolleys need to cover 20% of operating 
expenses in order to avoid a loss of grant funding for the city.  Trolley fund advertising increased 
farebox revenue $7,600 in the current year.  The Gold Coast Transit district (GCTD) provides 
approximately $184,000 annual grant funding for the operation of our trolley service.    FY 17-18, 
City Council approved an increase to the trolley fare and reduced operating hours to better meet 
the farebox revenue to expenditure ratio in future years.  Expenses for Transit activities decreased 
by approximately $1,700 and Cemetery expenses decreased by approximately $8,000 during the 
year.  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
As noted earlier, the City of Ojai uses fund accounting to account for its revenues and 
expenditures.  The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  In particular, unrestricted fund balances 
may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end 
of the fiscal year. 
 
As shown in Table 3, the total fund balance in the Governmental Funds is approximately $7.5 
million at fiscal year-end, an increase of approximately $853,000 from the prior year.  The total 
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Nonspendable General Fund balance at June 30, 2019 is $2.2 million, consisting almost entirely 
of the amount due from the Redevelopment Successor Agency (RDASA). This amount decreased 
approximately $262,000 in the General Fund due to receipt of the annual loan repayment from 
the RDASA.  Nonspendable Fund Balance was approximately 35.2% of the total fund balance in 
the General Fund and 29.8% of total governmental fund balance as of June 30, 2019.  The 
Nonspendable fund balance is not available for spending. 

 

   
 

    The Restricted fund balances are legally restricted for specific purposes by legislation or 
requirements outside the control of the City and they are only available for specific purposes.  At  
June 30, 2019, the restricted fund balance in the Governmental funds was approximately 
$846,000, consisting almost entirely of fund balances in several Special Revenue Funds of the 
City.  The total Unrestricted but assigned or committed fund balance is at zero in the General 
Fund and approximately $373,000 for the Other Governmental funds, a reduction of almost 
$85,000.   
 
The $4.1 million Unassigned fund balance in the City’s General Fund is designated as a “Rainy 
Day Reserve” by the City Council.  This reserve balance increased by approximately $577,000 in 
the current year.  The Unassigned fund balance in the Other Governmental funds is negative 
$62,000.  This negative balance represents a deficit position in the Plaza Maintenance Fund 
($62,000). 

ASSETS 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Cash & investments 3,787,752$     3,810,773$  1,163,431$  1,146,808$  4,951,183$  4,957,581$  
Cash & investments 

with fiscal agents 2,837              1,352           -              -              2,837           1,352           
Accounts & interest receiveable 1,415,286       899,267       128,656       164,667       1,543,942    1,063,934    

Due from other funds 337,908          424,126       -              -              337,908       424,126       
Due from successor agency 2,242,407       2,504,780    -              -              2,242,407    2,504,780    

Total assets 7,786,190       7,640,298    1,292,087    1,311,475    9,078,277    8,951,773    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 553,328          611,049       59,644         295,510       612,972       906,559       

Other liabilities 869,613          882,319       78,027         498,278       947,640       1,380,597    
Total liabilities 1,422,941       1,493,368    137,671       793,788       1,560,612    2,287,156    

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 2,242,407       2,504,780    -              -              2,242,407    2,504,780    

Restricted 2,837              1,352           843,596       598,120       846,433       599,472       
Unrestricted but 

assigned or committed -                  100,000       372,836       358,001       372,836       458,001       
Unassigned 4,118,005       3,540,798    (62,016)       (438,434)     4,055,989    3,102,364    

Total fund balances 6,363,249       6,146,930    1,154,416    517,687       7,517,665    6,664,617    
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES 7,786,190$     7,640,298$  1,292,087$  1,311,475$  9,078,277$  8,951,773$  

TABLE 3

General Fund Funds Total

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
Other Governmental
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
As shown in Table 4, total revenues in the Governmental funds increased approximately $1.1 
million.  Overall, General Fund revenues increased approximately $864,000 while revenues from 
Other Governmental Funds increased approximately $250,000.  Governmental expenditures 
decreased $950,000, with approximately $288,000 of the increase coming from the General Fund 
and approximately $1.2 million decrease from the paving project in the Capital Improvement Fund.  
Expenditures in the General Fund were under revenues by $500,000.  Actual revenues in the 
General fund were approximately $144,000 higher than the budget and expenditures were 
approximately $79,000 under budget.   
 
 
 
 
 

Revenues: 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Property taxes 1,951,016$    1,711,949$   -$                   -$             1,951,016$    1,711,949$   
Sales taxes 1,753,908      1,563,838     -                     -               1,753,908      1,563,838     
Transient occupancy taxes 2,970,515      2,678,333     742,935             669,061       3,713,450      3,347,394     
Other taxes and assessments -                 -                348,164             351,101       348,164         351,101        
Licenses, permits, and fees 1,161,806      1,323,700     -                     -               1,161,806      1,323,700     
Fines and forfeitures 11,575           9,285            -                     -               11,575           9,285            
Use of money and property 115,208         57,179          28,481               7,242           143,689         64,421          
Intergovernmental:
Motor vehicle in lieu 870,286         831,779        -                     -               870,286         831,779        
Other 350,009         337,822        601,693             454,349       951,702         792,171        
Charges for services 941,359         861,575        28,115               29,244         969,474         890,819        
Other revenue 164,396         50,684          11,200               -               175,596         50,684          

Total revenues 10,290,078    9,426,144     1,760,588          1,510,997    12,050,666    10,937,141   
Expenditures: 0.28868         0.3082           

Current:
General government 2,587,578      2,135,132     -                     -               2,587,578      2,135,132     
Public safety 3,431,656      3,405,968     -                     -               3,431,656      3,405,968     
Public works 1,838,085      2,032,513     71,488               92,696         1,909,573      2,125,209     
Community development 882,894         895,630        131,828             111,722       1,014,722      1,007,352     
Parks and recreation 1,047,149      1,008,637     -                     554              1,047,149      1,009,191     
Libraries -                 -                111,620             111,620       111,620         111,620        

Non current:
Capital outlay 2,809             24,503          878,538             2,115,526    881,347         2,140,029     
Debt services -                 -                -                     -               -                 -                

Total expenditures 9,790,171      9,502,383     1,193,474          2,432,118    10,983,645    11,934,501   

Excess of revenues over -                 -                
(under) expenditures 499,907         (76,239)         567,114             (921,121)      1,067,021      (997,360)       

Transfers in -                 7,469            388,086             660,890       388,086         668,359        
Transfers out (283,588)        (171,553)       (318,471)            (488,500)      (602,059)        (660,053)       

Total other financing sources (uses) (283,588)        (164,084)       69,615               172,390       (213,973)        8,306            

Net change in fund balances 216,319         (240,323)       636,729             (748,731)      853,048         (989,054)       

Fund balances (deficit)-
beginning of fiscal year 6,146,930      6,387,253     517,687             1,266,418    6,664,617      7,653,671     

Fund balances (deficit)-end of
fiscal year 6,363,249$    6,146,930$   1,154,416$        517,687$     7,517,665$    6,664,617$   

TABLE 4

General Fund Funds Total

CITY OF OJAI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Other Governmental
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Governmental Fund Revenues 
In the General Fund, Property tax revenues increased $239,000 (14.0%), Transient Occupancy 
tax (TOT) revenues increased $292,000 (10.9%) and Sales Tax revenues increased $190,000 
(12.2%).   
 
Revenues in the Other Governmental funds increased approximately $250,000, with $195,000 
transfer from deferred revenue in the Transit Equipment replacement fund.  The negative fund 
balance in the Plaza Maintenance Fund was improved by $69,000 in the current year.  Over the 
past few years, there has been a trend in gas tax revenues at the state level and the amounts 
paid to the City of Ojai.  To reverse this trend, the state legislature approved a measure to increase 
gas taxes and to repay local agencies for funds borrowed by the state from the gas tax accounts. 
This legislation resulted in an increase of approximately $97,000 gas tax revenue to the City in 
the current fiscal year.   
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Governmental Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures of the Governmental Funds decreased approximately $950,000 with General Fund 
expenditures increasing $288,000 and expenditures in other governmental funds decreasing by 
approximately $1.2 million (primarily due to the off year of the bi-annual streets repair project in 
the Capital Improvements Fund).  One of the largest expenditure increases in the General Fund 
relates to personnel costs.  With CalPERS reducing the discount rate used as a factor in 
calculating pension costs, the annual pension expenditure in the City is anticipated to increase by 
approximately $100,000 with most of that being attributable to General Fund activities.   
 

General Fund Expenditures 
General Government- 
General government activities include the City Council, City Manager, City Treasurer, Finance, 
City Attorney, City Clerk, Non-Departmental, and Arts Commission.  Expenditures in these 
departments increased $452,000.  Expenditures in the city manager department increased 
approximately $37,000, primarily due to filling a vacancy and increased pension costs.  Two 
positions in the finance department contributed to a decrease of approximately $89,000 due to 
leave of absences from the prior year.  Expenditures in non-departmental increased by $476,000, 
primarily due to moving unfunded liability from all the departments.  The $50,000 increase to City 
Attorney were for increased legal services this fiscal year.  
 

Other General Fund Departments- 
Public Safety expenditures increased $26,000 (.8%) due to the annual cost of living increase 
and Public Works expenditures decreased $194,000 (9.6%) in the current year as a result of 
moving the unfunded liability to non-departmental cost center.  Community Development 
Department expenditures decreased approximately $13,000, primarily due to a vacancy in the 
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director position for part of the fiscal year. Capital outlay expenditures decreased $22,000, 
primarily due to reduction of PEG equipment purchases this year. 

 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights: The City Council adopted a General Fund revenue budget 
totaling approximately $10.1 million with no budget adjustments.  The adopted expenditure budget 
totaled $9.9 million.  Actual revenues collected were more than budgeted by approximately 
$144,000.  Top  three tax revenues collected were more than budget by $372,000.  Licenses, 
Permits, and Fees fell short of the budget by $378,000, while revenues from interest and rentals 
exceeded the budget by approximately $75,000. Actual revenues exceeded the budget for 
Charges for Services and Intergovernmental revenue by $36,000 and $50,000 respectively. Other 
Revenue fell short of the budget by $10,000.Despite the impacts of the Thomas Fire from the 
previous year, sales tax revenues exceeded budget for the year due to conservative budgeting 
and the strength of the local economy.   
 
The General Fund’s top three revenues are Property Taxes, Sales Taxes and Transient 
Occupancy Taxes, which generated approximately $6.7 million total revenue, which is 64.9% of 
the total General Fund revenues. 
 
The Public Safety expenditures represent 35.1% of the total General Fund expenditures, while 
General Government services and Public Works expenditures account for 26.4% and 18.8% of 
General Fund Expenditures, respectively.  Public safety and General Government expenditures 
increased by 0.8% and 21.2% respectively, whereas Public Works expenditures decreased by 
9.6%. 
  
Other Governmental Funds 
Expenditures in the other governmental funds decreased by approximately $1.2 million, which is 
entirely due to less capital outlay expenditures in the Capital Improvements Fund.  This is 
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consistent with the City’s capital improvement plan to complete paving activities every two years 
in order to obtain economies of scale in these projects. 
 
Proprietary funds:  The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information 
that is found in the government-wide financial statements (see more detail on pages 26-28 of this 
report) because they are reported using the full accrual basis of accounting.  The net position of 
the Transit enterprise fund is $829,000, an increase of $531,000 primarily due to two Trolley 
purchases in FY 18-19. These purchases provided an increase to the investment in capital assets  
by $309,000.  The unrestricted net position increased by $221,000 due to a new Caltrans grant, 
Gold Coast grant, and a TDA grant. 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
Capital assets:  The City's investment in capital assets is reported in the financial statements for 
the government-wide and business-type activities but not in the governmental fund financial 
statements.  The investment in capital assets includes non-depreciable assets (rights-of-way, 
land, artwork, and construction in progress) and depreciable assets (buildings, land and other 
improvements, equipment and machinery, infrastructure, and vehicles).  Table 5 provides a 
summary of the City’s capital assets net of accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2019 and 
2018.  Additional information on the City’s capital assets is found in Note 6 on pages 44-46 of this 
report. 

 

  
 
Long-term liabilities:   At June 30, 2019, the City had no loans or notes payable outstanding, 
but had a total of $9.3 million in long-term liabilities with $8.7 million in the governmental activities 
and $521,000 in the business-type activities.  Total long-term liabilities decreased $330,000 in 
the current fiscal year.  Pension liabilities decreased approximately $246,000 while OPEB liability 
increased $19,000 and liability for compensated absences decreased $103,000.  The pension 
liability increase can be primarily attributed to a decrease in the CalPERS discount rate which is 
a significant part of the pension liability computation. The liability for compensated absences is 
total value of vacation, compensated absences, and sick leave time that will be required to be 
paid out or used by employees at a future date. Pursuant to GASB 45, the City has been recording 
an actuarially determined OPEB liability.  The City implemented GASB 75 in the prior year and 
the total liability is  $3.8 million.  Additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities and OPEB 
is found in the Notes to Basic Financial Statements Numbers 7- 8, pages 47-55 of this report. 
 

Non-depreciable Assets 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rights of way 798,250$       798,250$       -$            -$         798,250$       798,250$       

Land 1,603,700      1,603,700      110,500       110,500    1,714,200      1,714,200      
Artwork 60,982           99,832           -              -           60,982           99,832           

Construction in Progress 846,604         365,743         16,702         68,518      863,306         434,261         
Depreciable Assets

Buildings 8,571,809      9,398,464      -              -           8,571,809      9,398,464      
Land Improvements 835,913         1,135,566      291,336       283,033    1,127,249      1,418,599      

Equipment and machinery 926,734         991,406         41,806         47,469      968,540         1,038,875      
Infrastructure 5,341,367      6,255,433      -              -           5,341,367      6,255,433      

Vehicles 144,972         78,525           434,022       75,608      578,994         154,133         
Public Art 36,902           -                 -              -           36,902           -                 

Total capital assets 19,167,233$  20,726,919$  894,366$     585,128$  20,061,599$  21,312,047$  

TABLE 5

Activities Activities Total

CITY OF OJAI
CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
Governmental Business-Type
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET OUTLOOK 

 
The City has been experiencing a positive turn around since the effects of the Thomas Fire even 
with one hotel still closed. City management has historically budgeted revenue growth 
conservatively and to mitigate possible natural disaster related revenue losses.  In an effort to 
prepare for future economic downturns and natural disasters, management has placed additional 
emphasis on meeting the fifty (50) percent reserve requirement and conservatively budgeting for 
FY 19-20.  The budget continues funding $100,000 a year to an OPEB trust in addition to the 
annual pay-as-you-go funding to reduce the long-term impact of the retiree medical plan.  The 
City has established an Equipment replacement fund to pay for future equipment replacement 
and technology improvements, by transferring $40,000 per year from the General fund.  As of 
June 30, 2019, this fund has accumulated $322,000 for this purpose. 
 
The City’s internal policy is to hold 50% of the current year General Fund operating budget in 
reserves.  The current internal 50% requirement may need to be re-visited as history has shown 
economic downturns last 8 months or longer before showing signs of recovery. A 50% reserve 
would provide funding for approximately 6 months, which may not be adequate for a economic 
downturn. One current sign of a potential economic downturn is rising housing costs. This is an 
indicator to be conservative.  At June 30, 2019, the City held $4.1 million in unassigned fund 
balance (reserves) compared to a requirement of $5.1 million, leaving  the City $964,000 under 
the internal reserve requirement.  Over the past few years, the City’s top three priorities have 
been: 

1) Bring General Fund reserves to the required level, 
2) Perform deferred maintenance on the City’s capital assets, and 
3) Balance revenues and spending in order to position the City for increased pension costs 

and to pay down the unfunded pension and retiree medical liabilities of the City. 
 
The City has been making slow progress towards meeting the 50% reserve objective.  The City 
has used 20% of total TOT revenue to maintain and improve streets, roads, and City facilities. 
This has allowed the City to spend a little over $1 million every two years on the pavement 
program. Finally, increasing the difference between budgeted revenues and budgeted 
expenditures has been difficult but we have been able to balance the budget despite increasing 
pension costs. There are many demands on city resources and many “worthy” causes so City 
Council will need to exercise caution when considering funding requests if we are to make 
progress in building reserves and not over spending our limited resources in future years. 
 
 
The economy in the Ojai Valley has continued to grow at a modest rate over the past several 
years.  Tourism significantly affects the City’s economy and its annual TOT and sales tax revenue.  

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Net pension obligations 4,853,727$    5,028,095$    295,113$   366,646$     5,148,840$    5,394,741$    

OPEB 3,609,616      3,543,887      210,311     257,465       3,819,927      3,801,352      
Compensated absences 276,906         379,482         15,834       16,086         292,740         395,568         
Total long-term liabilities 8,740,249$    8,951,464$    521,258$   640,197$     9,261,507$    9,591,661$    

TABLE 6

Activities Activities Total

CITY OF OJAI
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Governmental Business-Type
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TOT revenue accounted for 30.8% of General Fund revenues and 24.7% of total city revenues in 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, compared to 28.4% and 30.6% in the prior year.  This heavy 
concentration of revenues from one source leaves the city vulnerable if the economy turns 
downward.  A five year average growth of property tax and TOT revenues amounts to 
approximately $154,000  and $134,000, respectively.  Per U.S Department of Labor, the five-year 
average inflation is approximately under 2% and a recession is not anticipated in the coming year. 
Staff has conservatively budgeted TOT growth to 2% for FY 19-20. Staff projects steady growth 
in Sales tax revenue in the coming year and has projected a 2% increase in FY19-20.   
 
The City has placed Measure “C” on the March 2020 ballot. Measure “C” would bring the City’s 
TOT rate to 15% from 10%, with the additional 5% designated for capital improvement projects. 
This would also help the City to catch up on deferred maintenance. Staff estimates that deferred 
maintenance costs may be over $1 million at this time. Measure “C” is anticipated to raise $1.3 to 
$1.7 million per year.  
 
Staff projects that expenditures will continue to increase in the coming years due to two primary 
factors:  

1) City staffing levels have been kept low to provide funds for the capital improvement 
program. Some staffing needs have been identified that may require additional funding 
and will be recommended to City Council in coming months.  

2) Pension costs will continue to increase over the next six years as changes made by the 
CalPERS governing board will result in an estimated $100,000 additional pension 
contributions annually. 

 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
This financial report is intended to provide a general overview of the City of Ojai’s finances.  
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to: 

 
Pamela Greer 
Director of Finance 
City of Ojai  
401 S. Ventura St. 
Ojai, CA  93023 
greer@ojaicity.org 
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~ITY C1F gJAI 

STATEMEI~IT t3F 1~1ET PC~SITI4I~I 

June 30, 2{} 19 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 

Gash and investments $ 4,951,183 ~ 1 ~ 1,555 5,142,738 
Casll and investments with fïscal agents 2,$37 - 2,$37 

Accounts receivable, net 1,543,942 789,616 2,333,558 

Internal balances 272,3E 1 (272,361) - 

Due from successor agency 2,242,407 - 2,242,4(}7 
Capital assets not being depreciated 3,309,536 127,202 3,436,738 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation I5,857,ó97 767,164 l6,624,8ó 1 

Total assets 28,179,963 1,6ú3,l 76 29,783,139 

DEFERRED tJÜTFL() S ©F RESC1t1RCES 
Related to GPEB 298,647 11,574 3 I Q,221 
Related to pensions 1,468, 155 80,733 1,548,$8$ 

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,76ó,8ú2 92,347 1,859, Iú9 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 612,972 11,580 624,552 

Accrued liabilities iÚ1,527 9,922 111,449 

Deposits payable 15,18$ - 15,188 
Unearned revenue 765,378 18,491 783,869 

Noncurrent líabílíttes: 
Due within one year 69,227 3,959 73,186 
Due ín more than one year 8,671,022 S 17,299 9,188,321 

Total liabilities 10,235,314 561,251 1Q,796,5ó5 

DEFERRED INFLt~?WS fJF RESQU~tGES . 
Related to pensions 446,991 22,152 469,143 

Total deferred inflows of resources 44%,991 22,152 469,143 

NET Pi~SITION 

Net investment in capital assets 19,167,233 894,366 20,461,599 
Restricted for: 

Employee benefits 2,837 - 2,837 
Libraries 28,329 - 28,329 
Streets, bikeways, parks, and other related purposes 690,898 - 690,898 
Transit 124,123 - 124, I23 

Community development 246 - 246 

Unrestricted {749,2úb) 217,714 (531,492) 

Total net position l9,264,46ú $ 1,1l2,ú84 $ 2Q,376,54ú 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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l.l~~ V~ l.ie~~► ~ 

STATEMENT C)F ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal 4~ear Ended June 30, 2{~ 19 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Contributions Contributions 
FunctionslPrograms Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 

Governmental Activities: 
General government $ (2,613,420} $ 695,278 $ 3,849 $ 670 
Public safety (3,585,337} 12,354 280,924 - 
Public works (3,273,649} 404,167 345,726 307,661 
Community development (1,248,118} 503,179 - - 
Parks and recreation (1,224,410} 652,548 - - 
Libraries { 111,620} 110,956 - - 
Unallocated depreciation (586,917} - - _ 

Total governmental activities (12,643,471) 2,378,482 630,499 308,331 

Business-type Activities: 
Transit (864,227} 111,525 1,056,411 - 
Cemetery (14,134) 2,797 - - 

Total business-type activities (878,361} 114,322 1,056,411 - 

Total government $ (13,521,832) $ 2,492,804 $ 1,68b,910 $ 308,331 

General Revenues and Transfers: 
Taxes: 

Pr©party taxes 
Sales taxes 
Transient occupancy tax 
Other 

Motor vehicle in lieu tax, unrestricted 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net positíon at beginning of fiscal year 

%let position at end of fiscal year 

See  Nates  to Basic Financial Statements 
2+~ 



1~1et {Expenses} Revenues and 

~llatl~'ln Net Positlon 

GOVerrunental ~usiness-type 
ÀCtlyltleS AC~Iy1tIeS T©tal 

$ ( l,l 13,623} í~ - í~ ( I,~ 13,b4+3} 
(3,292,059} - {3,292,©59} 

(2,216,095} - {2,216,
~
y

0
y
95} 

~744,939} - (744,939) 

(571,862) - {571,862} 

(664} - ~óó4} 

(586,917} - (58b,917} 

~9,326,159} - (9,326,159} 

- 303,7Ú9 303,709 

- 11,3~7} (l 1,337} 

- 292,372 292,372 

(9,32ó,159) 292,372 ~9,033,787} 

1,951,416 - 1,951,O1ó 

1,753,908 - 1,753,908 

3,713,4SÚ - 3,7I3,450 

127,489 - I27,489 

870,286 - 870,286 

141,610 5,782 147,392 

175,595 1 I,850 187,445 

{213,973} 2I3,973 - 

8,519,381 231,ó05 8,75Ú,986 

($Oó,778} 523,977 (282,801) 

20,07I,238 588, l Ú3 20,659,34 I 

~ 19,264,46Ú ~ 1, I 12,080 ~ 20,376,540 
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CIT~ (~1F (~JAI 
BALANCE SHEET 
GC~V~E~;.N~~IENTAL FLT~~DS 
.~Utle ~{~, ~~ ~ ~ 

Capital Other Total  

Generat Improvements Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments ~ 3,787,752 ~ - $ 1,163,431 $ 4,951,183 

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 2,837 - - 2,837 

Accounts receivable, net 1,415,28E 107,305 21,351 1,543,942 

Due from other funds 337,9úb - - 337,908 
Due from successor agency 2,242,407 - - 2,242,407 

Total assets $ 7,786,190 ~ 107,305 $ 1,184,782 $ 9,078,277 

LIABILITIES AI~1I)  FUMI)  BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 553,328 ~ 39,875 $ 19,769 $ ~ 12,972 

Accrued liabilities 99,210 - 2,317 101,527 

Deposits payable 5,025 10,163 -  15,188 
Due to other funds - 7,377 58,170 65,547 

Unearned revenue 765,378 - - 765,378 

Total Liabilities 1,422,941 57,415 80,256 1,560,{ 12 

Fund balances: 

Nonspendabte: 

Due from successor agency 2,242,407 - - 2,242,407 

Restricted 2,837 - 843,596 846,433 

Assigned - 49,890 322,946 372,$36 

Unassigned 4,118,005 - {62,016) 4,055,989 

Total fund balances (deficits} 6,363,249 49,890 1,104,526 7,517,665 

Total Liabilities, and fund balances $ 7,786,190 107,305 1,184,7$2 $ 9,078,277 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY (~F ~}JÀI 
CrO~EItI`~ÍIVIENTAL FUNDS 
I~EC~NCILIATIC~N CAF THE BALANCE SHEET CAF GDVERNlV1E1~1TAL FLïNDS 
Tfl THE TATEEI"+1T CAF NET PDSITIC)N 
June 30, 209 

Fund balances of governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position are different beeause: 

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation have not been included 
as financial resources in governmental funds. 

Capital assets at historical cost ~ 43,571,?'79 

Accumulated depreciation {24,41(i,~4} 

In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not 
reported beeause they are applicable to future periods. In the statement 
of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources are reported. 

Deferred outflows of resources relating to: 
DPEB 298,47 
Pensions 1,48,155 

Deferred inflows of resources relating to: 
Pensions (44,991) 

Long-term debt has not been included in the governmental funds. 

Compensated absences ~ 27,906 

tJPEB 3,609,616 
Net pension liability 4,853,727  

Ne$  posltlon of governt~nental aetivltl~S 

~ 7,517,bb5 

~ /, ~ ~ I ,~ ~ ~ 

1,319,811 

(8,740,249) 

~ 19,264,460 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY CAF t.~~IAI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EPENI~ITURES, AND CHANCES IN FUND BALANCES 
COVER;NMENTAL FL1~NI~►S 
For the Fiscal dear Ended June 30, 201 ~ 

Capital Other Total 
General Improvements Governmental Governmental 
Fund Fund Funds Funds 

REVEN~JES 

Properly taxes $ 1,951,016 $ - ~ - $ 1,951,Q1ó 
Sales taxes 1,753,908 - - 1,753,90$ 

Transient occupancy tax 2,970,515 742,935 - 3,713,450 
Other taxes and assessments - - 34$,164 348,164 
Licenses, permits, and fees 1,161,806 - - 1,161,8Qó 
Fines and forfeitures 11,575 - - 11,575 
LJse of money and property 115,208 - 28,481 143,689 
Intergovernmental: 

Other 350,Q09 112,661 489,032 951,702 

Motor vehicle in lieu 87O,28ó - - 870,286 
Charges for services 941,359 - 28,115 969,474 
Other revenue 1ó4,39ó - 11,200 175,596 

Total revenues 10,290,078 8~5,59ó 904,992 12,OSQ,666 

E~PENI~ITUR.ES 

Current: 

+General government 2,587,578 - - 2,587,578 

Public safety 3,431,656 - - 3,43l,ó56 
Public worl~s 1,838,085 - 71,488 1,909,573 
Community development 882,894 - 131,828 1,014,722 
Parí~s and recreation 1,Q47,149 - - 1,047,149 
Libraries - - 111,ó2Q 111,620 

Capital outlay 2,809 704,189 174,349 881,347 

Total expenditures 9,79Q,17 l 704, l 89 489,285 10,983,645 

Excess of revenues over 

{under) expenditures 499,907 151,407 415,707 1,067,021 

ETHER FIIAI~CIN~ +CiURCES (USES} 

Transfers in - 20ó,l54 181,932 388,086 
Transfers out {283,588) - {318,471 } {ó02,Q59} 

Total other financing sources {uses} {283,588) 206,154 { 136,539) {213,973) 

Net changes in fund balances 216,319 357,só 1 279,168 853,048 

Fund balances {deficit) -July 1, 2018 6,146,930 (3Q7,ó71 } 825,358 ó,664,ó 17 

Fund balances -June 30, 2019 $ 6,363,249 49,890 ~ 1,104,526 $ 7,517,665 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY tJF ~JJAI 
RECC,~NCILIATION ~?F THE STATEMENT (JF R.EVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANCrES IN FUND BALANCES ~F GC~VER:NMENTAL FUNDS 
TC.~ THE STATEMENT" CAF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3~, 2019 

Diet change in fund balances -total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities differ because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 

of activities, the costs of those capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives 

as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay expenditures are added back to fund balances 

í~epreciation expense not reported in governmental funds 

$ 824,810 

(2,384,496) 

853,048 

(1,559,686) 

In governmental funds, GPEB expenses are recognized when employer aPEB contributions are 

made. in the statement of activities, t)PEt3 expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. This 

year, the difference between accrual-basis C}PEB expenses and actual employer {~PEB 

contributions was: 

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. 

In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This 

year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer contributions 

was: 

Compensated absences are not a current period expense. This is the net change in com~nsated 

absences for the current period. 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

(42,194 ) 

(160,522) 

102,57'6 

~ (806,7~8} 

See  Nates  to Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY OF I~JAI 
STATEMENT OF NET PaSITI(~N 
PR{~PIt.IETAR~ FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Business-type Activities - 
Enter~rise Funds 

Transit Cemetery Totals 
ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

+Cash and investments $ - $ 191,555 ~ 191,555 
Accounts receivable, net 789,616 - 789,61 b 

Total current assets 789,616 191,555 981,171 

Noncurrent Assets: 

Capital assets not being depreciated 9,556 1I7,64ó 127,202 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 765,193 1,971 767,164 

Total noncurrent assets 774,749 119,617 894,366 
Total assets 1,564,365 311,172 1,875,537 

I)EFERREI) QUTFLI~WS ~F RES(~►URCES 
Related to t~PEB 11,574 - 11,574 
Related to pension 78,320 2,413 80,733 

Total deferred outflows of resources 89,894 2,413 92,307 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 11,199 381 11,580 
Accrued liabilities 9,017 905 9,922 
Unearned revenue - 18,491 18,491 
Due to other funds 272,361 - 272,361 
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities 3,698 261 3,959 

Total current liabilities 296,275 20,038 316,313 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Compensated absences 11,093 782 11,875 
Net {JPEB liability 210,311 - 210,311 
Net pension liability Z8ó,294 8,819 295,113 

Total noncurrent liabilities 5a7,ó98 9,óa 1 517,299 
Total liabilities 803,973 29,639 833,612 

DEFERRED INFLt~VVS ClF RESOURCES 
Related to pension 21,490 662 22,152 

Total deferred inflows of resources 21,490 662 22,152 

NET P+t~SITIC}N 
Net investment in capital assets 774,749 119,617 894,366 
Unrestricted 54,047 I63,ó67 217,714 

Total net position $ 828,796 $ 283,284 $ 1,112,080 

See Dates to Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY 4F aJAI 
STATEI~~ENT CAF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND GANGES IN NET F~SITIC}N 
PROPRIETARY Fli~NDS 
Far the Fiscal Year Ended Jane 30, 2019 

Business-type Activities - 
Enterprise Funds 

Transit Cemetery Totals 
Operating Revenues: 

Charges far services {net of refunds} $ 111,525 $ 2,797 114,322 

Total operating revenues 111,525 2,797 114,322 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 302,496 6,833 309,329 
Material, supplies, and operational expenses ~ 359,303 6,808 366,11 I 
Depreciation 202,428 493 202,921 

Total operating expenses 864,227 14,134 87$,36 I 

C)perating inConle (lass) (7~2,702~ { 11,337) X764,039} 

Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses): 
Intergovenlmental revenue 1,056,411 - 1,056,411 
Interest ~ncame 1,466 4,316 5,782 

Gain Mass) on disposal of assets 11,850 - 11,850 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses} 1,069,72? 4,316 1,074,043 

Income (lass} before transfers 317,fl25 (?,021) 310,004 

Transfers in 213,973 - 213,973 

Changes in net position 530,998 {7,021 } 523,977 

Total net position -July 1, 2018 29?,798 290,305 588,103 

Total net position -June 30, 2019 $ 828,796 $ 283 284 $ 1,112,080 
.,.... w.,.....-.. -a ..x~ ~ ---~...~~.~.. 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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4.  i i i  ~i' 11~~~ 

STATEMENT OF CA~-I FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FL~~DS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 
Business-type Activities - 

Enterprise Funds __._ 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers and users 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees for services 

Net cash used by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating grants received 
Loan received from other funds 
Transfers from other funds 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

Net cash used by capital 
and related financing activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Fiscal Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Fiscal Year 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 

Cash and investments 

Reconciliation of Operating Income {loss) to Net Cash 
Provided {[lsed} by Operating Activities: 
Operating income {lass} 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss} to 

net cash provided {used} by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
{Increase} decrease in accounts receivable 
{Increase} decrease in inventory 
(Increase} decrease in deferred outflows 
Increase {decrease} in accounts payable 
Increase {decrease} in accrued liabilities 
Increase {decrease} in deferred charges 

Increase {decrease) in compensated absences 

Increase {decrease} in net OPEB liability 

Increase {decrease} in net pension liability 

Increase {decrease) in deferred inflows 
Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by {used by} operating activities 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements  

Transit Cemetery Totals 

~ 17,b49 $ 3,076 $ 220,725 

(438.743) 18.062) (446.805) 

{553,611} {14,929) {568,540} 

688,727 - 688,727 

149_754 - 149.754 

1,052,454 - 1,052,454 

(512.159) - (512.159) 

{500,309} - {500,309) 

1,466 4,316 5,782 

1,466 4,316 5,782 

- [ lU_bl3) ~ IU_6131 

$ - ~ 191,555 ~ 191,555 

~ {752,702} $ { 11,337} $ {764,039} 

202,428 493 202,921 

106,124 - 106,124 

- l,Ú50 1,Ú5O 
33,262 1,331 34,593 

{32,286} {2,304} {34,590} 

2,474 651 3,125 

- 279 279 

732 {984} {252} 

{47,154) - {47,154} 

{67,504} {4,029} {71,533} 

1,015 {79) 93b 
199,091 {3,592} 195,499 

{553,b 11) { 14,929} {568,540) 
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CITY 0► F C3JAI 
STATEMENT ~F NET PQSITI~N 
FIDUCIARY FI.TNI~S 
June 3 ~, 2~} 1 ~ 

Private Purpose 
Trust Funds Agency Funds 

Successor 
Agency 

Special 
Deposits 

~ 772,251 $ 72,Q77 

1,427,~ 11 - 

305,8$8 - 

2,505,75~ ~ 72,~ ! t 

- ~ 72,Q77 

1,744,254 - 

4~8,153 - 
418,2úo - 

2,~~0,~~7 $ 72,Q77 

~ {154~85~}  

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Notes receivable 
Land 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts  pagable  

Accrued interest payable 
Loans payable -City of Ojai 
Unearned revenue 

Total 11ab111tles 

NET P{~SITI(~ 
.Held in trust 

See  Flotes  to Basic Financial Statements 
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$ 368,824 

16,687 

3 85,511 

114,71fl 

114,71fl 

27Q,8ú1 

(425,658) 

$ ~154,857)  

STATEiVIEI~]~T GF CHANGES IN FIí~►UCIARY NET PGSITIGN 
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3 fl, 2fl 1 ~ 

Successor 

Agency 

ADDITIt~NS: 

Property taxes 
Use of money and property 

Total additions 

I~EI~~TTICI►1`~: 

Community development 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Total net position -beginning of fiscal year 

Total net position •end of fiscal year 

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY OF OJAI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019_ _ .., 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Ojai (the City) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
signifïcant of the City's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting, Entity 

The City of Ojai is a political subdivision provided for by the General Law of the State of California and, as such, can exercise 
the powers specified by the Constitution and laws of the State of California. The City operates under acouncil-manager form 
of government. 

The City of Ojai is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five-member City council. As of November 16, 2016, the 
Mayor is the elected leader of the Council. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, these financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is 
considered to be financially accountable. The City has no blended component units as determined by GASB Statement No. 
14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 3, GASB Statement No. 61, and GASB Statement No. 80. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The City's basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing 
accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the United States of America. 

Government-wide Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the primary government (the City}. 
These statements include the financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations 
have been made to minimize the double counting or internal activities. Government activities generally are financed through 
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of the 
City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifïable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods 
or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a 
particular program, and (c) fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of 
capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for 
each fund category-governmental, proprietary and fiduciary-are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on 
major individual funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated 
and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary funds financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources "measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) 
in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned 
while expenses are recognized in the period in which liability is incurred. 

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operation of the fund. All 
other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary 
operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private 
organization, other gavernmental units, and/or other funds. 
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CIT~ o~ oJAI 
~~TES To .BASIC FI~AI~fiCIAL STATEMEI'~TS 
June ~o, 2019 

NOTE 1 -- SUMI~IAI~Y oF SI~NI~ICAI~T ACCOI.TNTII`~1G POLICIE~ {Continued} 

C. Major Funds 

GASB Statement Igo. 34 dunes major funds and requires that the City's major funds are identified and presented separately 
in the fund financial statements. All other funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a single column, 
regardless of their fund-type. 

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues, or expendiíures/expenses equal to ten percent of 
their fund-type total. The General Fund is always a major fund. The City may also select other funds it believes should be 
presented as major funds. 

The City reported the following major governnn.ental funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in other funds, 

The Capital Improvements Fund ïs used to account for costs associated with the five year capital improvements plan. 

The City reports the following proprietary funds: 

The Transit Enterprise Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the transit operations. 

The Cemeter,~ Enterprise Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of cemetery operations. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 

The Fiduciary Funds are used to report resources held by the City in a purely custodial capacity, which involves only 
the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other 
governments, 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 19$9, are generally followed in both 
the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or 
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB}. For proprietary fund type activities, the City 
has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as any applicable pronouncements of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), the Accounting Principles Board {APB}, or any Accounting Research Bulletins {ARBs} 
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they contradict or conflict with GASB pronouncements. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's proprietary funds functron and various other functions of 
the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various 
functions concerned. 

Arnounts reported as program revenues include: 1 } charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided, 2} operating grants and contributions, and 3} capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues 
include all taxes. 
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CITY OF OJAI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 _.. 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Ma'o1 r Funds Continued 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for the Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation 
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this defïnition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, and 
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at 
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict 
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent 
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has 
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues 
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within ninety days after fiscal year-end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term 
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they have 
matured. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and 
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other fïnanci.ng sources. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in 
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenues from property taxes is 
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in 
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Other revenues susceptible to accrual include other taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest, and charges for services. 

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the terms of grant 
agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, 
and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net position may be available to finance program 
expenditures/expenses. The City's policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general 
revenues if necessary. 

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, Net Position or Fund Balances 

Cash and Investments 

In order to maximize the flexibility of its investment program and to aid in cash budgeting, the City pools the cash of all funds, 
except for monies deposited with fiscal agents in accordance with related bond indentures. The cash and investments balance 
in each fund represents that fund's equity share of the City's cash and investment pool. As the City places no restrictions on 
the deposit or withdrawal of a particular fund's equity in the pool, the pool operates like a demand deposit account for the 
participating funds. 
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NQTES TC~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 3 0 2019 

NOTE 1 -- SC.TNiI~IA.RI~ OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLTNTIN~G POLICIES ~Continued~ 

E. Assets Deferred Outflows Liabilities Deferred Inflows Net Position or Fund Balances Continued 

.Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated quarterly to the various funds based on average three months 
balances and is adjusted at fiscal year-end. Interest income on restricted cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited 
directly to the related .fund. 

In accordance with the State of California Government Code, the City adopts an investment policy annually that, among other 
things, authorizes types and concentrations of investments and maximum investment terms. 

The City's investments are carried at fair value. LAIF determines the fair value of its portfolio quarterly and reports a factor 
to the City; the City applies that factor to convert its share of LAIF from amortized cost so fair value. CalTrust portfolio of 
investments and the negotiable certificates of deposits are reported at fair value monthly. Changes are reported at fair value 
monthly in fair value are allocated to each participating fund. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City has defined cash and cash equivalents to be change and petty cash funds, 
equity in the City's cash and investment pool, and restricted non-pooled inves%nents with initial maturities of three .months or 
less. 

Receivables and Payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are 
referred to as interfund receivables/interfund payables (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or advances to/from other 
funds the noncurrent portion of interfund loans}, All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as inlerfund 
receivables or interfund payables. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances. 

All trade and tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts if applicable, and estimated refunds due. 

Property Taxes 

Properly taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the County level, and consist of secured, 
unsecured, and utility tax rolls. The following is a summary of major policies and practices relating to property taxes: 

property Vc~luaíions -- are established by the Assessor of the County of  ventura  for the secured and unsecured property tax 
rolls; the utility properly tax. rolls are valued by the State Board of Equalization. Under the provisions ofArticle xIIIA of the 
State Constitution (Proposition 13 adopted by the voters on June 6, 197$} properties are assessed at 1(}o percent of purchase 
price or value in 1978, whichever is later. From this base of assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are limited 
to a maximum of 2 percent. ~Iowever, increases to full value are allowed for property improvements or upon change in 
ownership. Personal property is excluded from these limitations, and is subject to annual reappraisal. 

Tax Levies -- are lir~nised to one percent of full value which results in a tax rate of 1.00 per ~ 1 Qo assessed valuation, under the 
provisions of Proposition 13 . Tax rates for voter-approved indebtedness are excluded from this limitation. 

Tax Levy I.~ates -- are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The fiscal year 
begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year. Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured personal properly, as is 
exists at that lime. Liens against real estate, as well as the tax on personal property, are not relieved by subsequent renewal or 
change ín ownership. 

Tex Collections —are the responsibility of the County Tax Collector. Taxes and assessments on secured and utility rolls which 
constitute a lien against the property, may be paid ín two installments; the first ís due on November 1 of the fiscal year and is 
delinquent if not paid by December l o; and the second is due on February 1 of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid by 
April lo. Unsecured personal property taxes do not constitute a lien against real properly unless the taxes become delinquent. 
Payment must be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by August 31 of the fiscal year. Signíficanl penalties 
are imposed by the County for late payment. 
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NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, Net Position or Fund Balances (Continued) 

The County of Ventura levies, bills, and collects property taxes and special assessments for the City. Property taxes levied are 
recorded as revenue when received, in the fiscal year of levy. 

Tax Levy Apportionments —due to the nature of the City-wide maximum levy, it is not possible to identify general purpose tax 
rates for specific entities. Under state legislation adopted subsequent to the passage of Proposition 13, apportionments to local 
agencies are made by the County Auditor-Controller based primarily on the ratio that each agency represented of the total City-
wide levy for the three years prior to fiscal year 1979. 

Property Tax Administration Fees —the State of California Fiscal Year 1990-91 Budget Act authorized counties to collect an 
administrative fee for collection and distribution of property taxes. Property taxes are recorded net of administrative fees 
withheld during the fiscal year. 

Prepaid Items 

Payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items in both government-
wide and fund financial statements. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, traffic lights 
and signals, street lights, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in 
the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial individual cost of 
$5,000 (including infrastructure) or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such capital assets are recorded 
at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. The cost of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital asset or materially extend capital asset lives are not 
capitalized. 

Major outlays for constructed capital assets and improvements are capitalized during the construction period and is shown as 
construction in progress. lnterest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included 
as part of llie capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest was capitalized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

Capital assets of the Cíty are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 

Buildings 50 
Improverr~nts other than buildings 20 to 50 
Infrastructure 10 to 65 
Vehicles 3 to 8 
Computer equipment 5 
Other equipment and furnishings 5 to 20 

Periodic restoration and maintenance costs on particular items are charged to expense as incurred. 

Compensated Absences and Post-Employment Benefits 

The City accrues the liability for compensated absences in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 4. 
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NOTE 1 — SIJMMAR.~ ~F SI~N~IFICANT ACC(~Ul'~TIN Pt~LI+CIES {~©ntinued} 

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, Net Position or Fund Balances Continued} 

~ampensated Absences and Past-Employment Benefits (continued} 

The Compensated absences policy of the Ciíy is as follows: 

a} vacation ís accrued by full time employees who work either 36 or 40 hours per week and ís based on years of 
service. 3b hours per week employees with up to 1 year of service accrue 79.2 hours per year and those with over 
1 S years of service accrue up to 144.0 hours per year. 40 hours per week employees with up to 1 year of servíce 
accrue 88.0 hours per year and those with over 18 years of servíce accrue up to 1 X0.0 hours per year. Permanent 
part-time employees receive apro-rata accrual based on hours worked exceeding 20 hours per week. Maximum 
accrual ís 270 hours. 

b} Sick leave is accrued by employees who work 3~ hours per week at a rate of ~.2 hours per month and employees 
who work 40 hours per week accrue at a rate of 8 hours per month. Per~n.anent part time employees accrue apro-
rata share of these hours based on hours worked exceeding 20 hours per week. Maximum hours allowed as an 
accrual are 9~0, Employees can sell back up to 4o hours of sick leave every year, provided they maintain a balance 
of at least 300 hours. Upon death, retirement, and/or honorable separation from employment, the City will pay 50% 
of an employee's accumulated sick leave if the employee has at least 5 years of service. 

c} Effective July 1, 201 ~, for all persons employed by the City who work less than the minimum of twenty {20} hours 
per week but who work thirty {30} or more hours within a year from the date first hired, sick leave shall be earned 
at a rate of one {1) hour for every thirty {30) hours worked. For these employees, sick leave may not be used until 
an employee has been on the job for at least ninety {90) days. Such sick leave shall be earned immediately upon 
employment, subject to the employee having first been a resident of the State of California for at least thirty {30} 
days. The maximum amount of sick leave that may be taken by such employees shall not exceed 24 hours per fiscal 
year. Upon termination, the City shall maintain record of accumulating hours of the employee and shall make those 
hours available to the employee should the employee return to employment with the City within one year. 

The City provides post-employment medical benefits to retired employees who were hired before November 1, 2010 and have 
at least 5 years of  PERS  servíce credit with the City and retire from the City. Employees hired after November 1, 2010 and 
before October 1, 2012, {November 1, 2012 for Council Members} must have ten years of continuous service for the City of 
Ojai and retire from tl~e City to receive the post-employment medical benefits. 

Employees hired after October 1, 2012, must have ten years of continuous service to the City of Ojai and retire from the City 
to receive the post-employee medical benefits. The benefit will be Public Employees' Medical and Flospital Care Act 
{PE~~HCA} minimum contribution only and the retiree pays the balance of theïr premium. 

During the 2014-15 fiscal year, the City established an irrevocable trust through the CaIPERS California Employers' retiree 
benefit trust {CERBT} ín order to prefund its other post-employment benefit {OPEB} obligation. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City paid 198,451 ín health care costs for its retirees and their covered dependents 
on apay-as-you-go basis and 100,000 to the irrevocable trust to pay for future benefits. 

Deferred Ciutflows and Infla► ws of Resources 

Pursuant to OASB Statement No. b3, "financial Deporting Qf Lie, fe~~e~ Qutflows Q~"Res~urees, De~`erred Inflows of Resou~ees, 
and 1Vet Position," and CASB Statement No. ~5, "Items Previously Departed as Assets aid Liabilities, „ the City recognizes 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. 
A deferred outflow of resources ís defined as a consumption of net position by the government that ís applicable to a future 
reporting period. The City has íwo items which qualify for reporting in this. category; refer to Notes 7 and 8 for a detailed 
listing of the deferred outflows of resources the City recognized. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and the governmental funds balance sheet wi11 sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net posítíon 
by the Ciiy that is applicable to a future reporting period. The City has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category; 
refer to Note ~ for a detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources the City has recognized. 
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NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, Net Position or Fund Balances (Continued) 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City Public Employee's Retirement System (CaIPERS) 
plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Other Postern ploym ent Benefits (OPEB) 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District's plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and 
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Initial-issue bond premiums and discounts, are deferred and amortized over 
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Amortization of bond premiums or discounts are included as part of interest 
expense. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the period issued. 
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received are reported as other financing 
sources, while discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Net Position and Fund Balances 

In the Government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is reported in three 
categories: net investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position. Restricted net position 
represents net position restricted by parties outside of the City (such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, and regulations 
of other governments or by enabling legislation) and include unspent proceeds of bonds issued to acquire or construct capital 
assets. The City's other restricted net position is temporarily restricted (ultimately expendable assets). All other net position 
is considered unrestricted. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or 
unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constrains on how specifïc amounts can be spent. 

• Nonspendable fund balance —amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not spendable in form or (b) legally 
or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted fund balance —amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed fund balance —amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by formal action of the City's 
highest level of decision-making authority (the City Council) and that remain binding unless removed in the same 
manner. The underlying action that imposed the limitation needs to occur no later than the close of the reporting period. 

• Assigned fund balance —amounts that are constrained by the City Council's intent to be used for specific purposes. The 
intent can be established at either the highest level of decision making, or by a body or an official designated for that 
purpose. 

• Unassigned fund balance —the residual classification for the City's funds that include amounts not contained in the other 
classifications. 
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Nt~TE 1 — S~[J1VTIV~ARY ~F SIGNIFICANT ACCt~UNTIN~ PClLICIES {Continued) 

E. Assets Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, Net Position or Fund Balances ~Continued~ 

Net P©citi©n and Fund Balances {Continued} 

The City Council establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by passage of an ordinance or 
resolution. This is done through adoption of the budget and subsequent budget amendments that occur throughout the fiscal 
year. 

F. Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America {U.S. AAP} requires Ciíy management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenseslexpenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

G. Future Accounting pronouncements 

OASB Statements listed below wí11 be implemented in future financial staterr~nts: 

Statement No. 84 "Fiduciary Activities" 

Statemen t No . 87 "Leas es " 

Statement No. 89 "Accounting f©r Interest Cost Incurred 
before the End ofa Construction 
Period" 

Statement No. 90 "i~lajority city Interests-an 
A~nendt~nt ofGASB Staterr~nts No. 
1~and No. 61" 

Statement No. 91 "Conduit Debt Obllgatlons" 

The  provis fons  ofthis statennt are effective 
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. 

The provisions ofthis statement are effective 
for fiscal gears beginning after December 15, 2019.  

T'he provis  ions ofthis statement are effective 
f©r fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. 

The provisions ofthis staterrrent are effective 
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 201$. 

The  provis  ions ofthis statement are effective 
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. 

NC~TB 2-- STEwAI~w.1~SI-IIP, CQi~~IPLIANCF, ~.Ni~ ACCCI►UNT'ABILIT~ 

A . Bu~eta~-yulnforrnation 

1. The budget adopted by the City Council provides for the  generat  operation of the City. It includes proposed expenditures 

and the means off"financing them. 

2. The City Council approves total budgeted appropriations and any amendments to appropriations throughout the fiscal year. 
Alt amendments made during the fiscal year are included in the budgetary amounts reported herein. The "appropriated 
budget" covers all City expenditures. Actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level, which 
is the legal Level of budgetary control. 
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June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 —STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

Budgetary Information (Continued 

3. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, the City 
Council must approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund. 

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the fiscal year. 

5. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds are adopted on a basis substantially consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, actual revenues and 
expenditures can be compared with related budgeted amounts without any significant reconciling items. 

6. Budget comparisons are not presented for the Proprietary Funds, as the City is not legally required to adopt a budget for this 
type of fund. 

7. Capital projects are budgeted through the Capital Projects Funds. Appropriations for authorized capital projects but not 
constructed or completed during the fiscal year, are carried forward as continuing appropriations into the following fiscal 
year's budget. 

8. Under Article XIII-B of the California constitution (the GANN Spending Limitation Initiative), the City is restricted as to 
the amount of annual appropriations from the proceeds of taxes, and if proceeds of taxes exceed allowed appropriations, the 
excess must either be refunded to the State Controller or returned to the taxpayers through revised tax rates or revised fee 
schedules, or an excess in one year may be offset by a deficit in the following fiscal year. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019, based on calculations by City staff, proceeds of taxes did not exceed appropriations. Further, Section 5 of. Article XIII-
B allows the City to designate a portion of fund balance for general contingencies, to be used for any purpose. 

Excess of Expenditures over A~ r~opriation 

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds are as follows: 

M aLor Fund 

General Fund: 

City manager 

Public works 

Parks and recreation 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Plaza M aintenance Fund: 

Community development 

Equipment Replacement Fund: 

Capital outlay 

$ 42,649 

61,728 

217,049 

29,578 

105, 749 

C. Deficit Fund Balance 

The following fund had a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2019: 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund 

Plaza M aintenance 62,016 
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June 30 2C~19 

NOTE 3 —CASH ANI) INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2ü 19, deposits and investments were reported ín the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Statement of net posití©n: 
Cash and investments $ 5,142,738 

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 2,837 

Fiduciary funds, statement ©f net position: 
Cash and investments 844,328 

Total cash and invest~;nts $ 5,989,93 

Cash and investments as of June a, 2~ 1 ~, consist of the following: 

Petty cash $ 5{l0 

Cash in bank 379,691 

Investments 5,f~9,712 

Total cash and investments $ 5,989,9x3 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U. S. Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. These principles recognize a three-
tiered fair value hierarchy. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets far identical assets; Level ~ inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The City had investments in the money market funds and State 
Investment  Poal  {LATE}, however, these investments are not measured under Level 1, 2 or 3, The City had Level 1 investments in 
CalTrust with a faïr value of $8x5,748 and negotiable certificates of deposit with a fair value of $2,892,575. 

Investments Authorized b the California Government Code and the Ci 's Investment Polk 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government Code. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Cade that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit 
risk. 

1Vlaximum Maximum 
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment 

Investment T~,~e MaturïtY of Porifolio in Cane Issuer 

L.S. Treasury +obligations 5 years None Nane 
LJ.S. Agency Securities 5 years lone None 
Commercial Paper 18fl days 15% 1 {}% 

egatlable CertlllcateS of Deposit 5 years 3I}°lo None 

Time Deposits 5 years 2% None 

Medium-Tenn Dates 5 years 3x°l~ 15°~0 

Mutual Funds N/A 20°f~ 1 {~% 

Money lVlarket Mutual Funds N/A None 1 ~}% 

Local Agency Investment Fund ~LAIF} N/A Nane None 

JPA Pools ~(ather investment pools N/A None Nane 

CalTrust N/A None Nane 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the faïr value of an investment. Generally, the 
longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its faïr value to changes in market interest rates. Gne of the ways that 
the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of sho~~ter term and longer term investments and by 
timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over tune as necessary 
to provide the cash flows and liquidity needed far operations. 
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued} 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 
following table that shows the distribution of the City's investments by maturity: 

Investment Type 
State Investment Pool $ 
Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Money market fiends 

CalTrust Medium Term Fund 

Remaining Maturity (in months) 
12 Months 13 to 24 25-60 More Than 

Total Or Less Months Months 60 Months 
1,066,844 $ 1,066,844 $ - $ - $ - 

2,892,575 736,850 569,038 1,586,687 - 

844,545 844,545 - - - 

805,748 805,748 - - - 

Total $ 5,609,712 $ 3,453,987 $ 569,038 $ 1,586,687 $ - 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating 
required by the California Government Code, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type. 

Minimum Exempt Rating as of Fiscal Year End 
Legal From Not 

Investment Type Total Rating Disclosure AAA AA-f Rated 
State Investment Pool $ 1,066,844 N/A $ - $ - $ - $ 1,066,844 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,892,575 N/A - - - 2,892,575 

Money market funds 844,545 N/A - - - 844,545 

CalTrust Medium Term Fund 805,748 N/A - - 805,748 - 

Total $ 5,609,712 $ - $ - $ 805,748 $ 4,803,964 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by 
the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one issuer that represents 5% or more of the City's total investments 
except the investment in Ojai Community Bank which is secured by collateral. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be 
able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are ín the possession of an outside party. The California 
Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial 
credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial 
institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a 
depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial 
institutions to secure the City's deposits by pledging fïrst trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public 
deposits. 

None of the City's deposits with financial institutions in excess of the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation's limits were held in 
uncollateralized accounts. 
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NOTE 3 -- C~► H ANLI INVE~TIVIENTS {continued} 

Custodial, Credit I~is~Continued~ 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty {e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, 
a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. 
The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. t~ith respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct 
investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect Investment in securities 
through the use of mutual funds or governmental investment pools {such as LAIF and CalTrust). 

Investment ín Mate Investment Pool 

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund {LAIF that is regulated by the California Government Code 
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City's investment in this pool is reported in the 
accompanying basic financial statements at the amounts based upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the 
entire LAIF portfolio {in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio}. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

N(}TE 4 ~- A~C~UNT~ RE~EIVABLE 

The following is a list of accounts receivable at June 30, 201 ~: 

Governmental Activities -

Accounts receivable, net 

Business-type Activities -

Accounts receivable, net 

I~.eceivable 

$ 1,543,942 

~ 1,543,942 

$ 7 8 9,616 

$ ~59,616 

Allowance I~Iet 

$ - $1,543,942 

$ - ~ 1,543,942 

~ - ~ ~ 8 9,616 

~} - í~i ! tJ / , V ~ ~ 
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NOTE 5 — INTERFUND ACTIVITY 

The following represents the interfund activity of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019: 

A. Transfers 

Transfers In Transfers out 
Major Governmental Funds: 

General $ - $ 283,588 
Capital Improvements 206,154 - 

Nonmajor Govemmental Funds 
Libby Bowl Maintenance - 12,582  
Cras  Tax - 59,532 
Bicycle and Pedestrian - 48,991 
Street Lighting 7,810 - 
Plaza Maintenance 53,000 - 
Equipment Replacement 121,122 - 
Transit Equipment Replacement - 197,366 

Major Proprietary Fund: 
Transit 213,973 - 

$ 602,059 $ 602,059 

In general, the City uses interfund transfers to (1) move revenues from the funds that collect them to the funds that statute or budget 
requires to expend them, (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to help finance various programs and capital projects 
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization, and (3) move cash to debt service funds from the funds 
responsible for payment as debt service payments become due. 

B. Due to/From Other Funds 

Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid shortly after the end of the fiscal year. 
The following is a summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2019: 

Due from/ Due to/ 
Receivable Payable 

Major Governmental Funds 
General $ 337,908 $ - 
Capital Improvements - 7,3 77 

Nonmajor Governmental Fund: 
Plaza Maintenance - 5 8,170 

Major Proprietary Fund: 
Trans it - 2 72,3 61 

$ 337,908 $ 337,908 ~~---~ 

Interfund activity has been eliminated in the statement of net position and activities except where it is between Governmental and 
Business-type activities. 
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NOTE ~ — +CAPITAL A~~ETS 

A. Governmental Activities 

Governmental capital asset activity far the fiscal year ended June 3(1, 2a 19, was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 

July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019 

Capital assets, nQt being depreciated: 
Right of way $ 798,250 - $ - $ 798,250 
Land 1,603,700 - - 1,603,700 
Artwork 99,832 - (38,850} ía,982 

Construction in progress 
Total 

Capital assets being depreciated; 
Buildings 
Improverr~nts other than buildings 
Equipment and machinery 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles 
Public art 

Total 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment and machinery 
Irï fr as  trií  Ctu re 

VehrcleS 
Public art 

Total 

Total, net of accumulated deprecidtiorl 

Total capital assets, net 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City's governmental activities as follows: 

Public safety ~ 118,632 
Public works 1,289,318 

Community develaprnent 222,381 

Parks and recreation 167,248 

tJnall©cared 586,917 

Total $ 2,384,496 

365,743 507,861 {27,000} 846,604 

2,867,525 507,861 ~65,850} 3,309,536 

15,289,783 162,400 - 15,452,183 

3,378,764 - - 3,378,764 

1,801,984 82,939 - 1,884,923 

18,927,959 - - 18,927,959 

486,954 98,610 {52,410} 533,154 

- 38,850 38,850 

39,885,444 382,799 ~52,410} 40,215,833 

~5,891,319} (989,055} - (6,880,374} 

{2,243,198} (299,653} - {2,542,851 } 

{810,578} ~ 147,611 } - (958,189} 

{12,672,526} ~914,066} - ~13,586,592} 

{408,429} {32,163} 52,410 (388,182} 

- {1,948} ~1,948} 

~22,026,050} {2,384,496} 52,410 {24,358,136} 

17,859,394 {2,001,697} - 15,857,697 

$ 20,726,919 $ {1,493,836} ~ {65,850} $ 19,167,233 
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1'~TC~TE 6 - ~.APITAL ASSNS {continued} 

B. Business-T~~e Activities 

Business-type capital asset activity far the fiscal year ended June 3 t~, 20 I ~ was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 

July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019 
+cemetery Fund: 
Capital assets,  nat  being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total 
Capital assets, beïng depreciated: 

Land irnproverrnts 

Total 

Less accumulated depreciation far: 

Land improverr~ents 

Total 

Total net ofaccumulated depreciation 

cemetery Fund capital assets, net 

Trans it Fund: 
Capital assets, not being deprcciated: 

Lan d 
Can s traction ïn progres s 

Total 
Capital assets, beïng depreciated: 

Land it~~pi~ovements 

u ïpment and mach in ery 

Vehicles 
Total 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements 

F~uipment and machinery 

Vehicles 

Total 

Total net of accumulated depreciation 

T~~ansït Fund caplta~ assets, net 

$ 108,900 $ - ~ - $ 108,900 
8,746 - - 8,746 

I 17,646 - - I 17,646 

12,124 - - I2,124 

12,124 - - 12,124 

{9,660} (493) - (1 ~, I53) 

(9,660) {493) - { 10, 153} 

2,464 X493) 1,971 

$ 120,11 ~ X493) $ - $ 119,617 

Balance at Balance at 
July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019 

$ 1gú0 - ~ - ~ 1,600 

59,772 2,367 04,183} 7,956 

~ 1,372 2,367 {54,183} 9,556 

453,872 54,183 - 508,055 

178,672 13,427 - 192,099 

912,580 496,365 (176,420) 1,232,525 

1,545,124 563,975 (176,420) 1,932,679 

{I73,303~ (45,387) - {218,690} 

~ 131,203} (19,{190) - { 150,293} 

{836,972) { 137,9,51 } 176,420 {798,503) 

{1,141,478} (202,428) 176,420 {1,167,486} 

403,6 361,547 - 765,193 

$ 465,OI 8 $ 363,914 {54, 183) 774,749 
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1`+1CJTE 6 _ ~APITAL ASSETS (~ontinued} 

B. Business-Type Activities {Continued) 

Balance at Balance at 

July 1, 218 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019 

Tots[ Business-type Activities 
Capital assets, not being dep reciated: 

Land $ 110,500 ~ - $ - $ 110,500 

Construction in progress 6$,51$ 2,367 {54,1$3) 16,7(12 

Total 179,01$ 2,367 {54,1$3) 127,202 

Capital assets, being dep reciated: 
Land improvements 465,996 54,1$3 - 520,179 

Equipment and machinery 17$,672 13,427 - 192,099 

Vehicles 912,580 496,365 (176,420) 1,232,525 

Total 1,557,24$ 563,975 (176,420} 1,944,$03 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements (1$2,963] (45,$80} - (22$,843) 

Equipment and machinery {131,203) (19,090} - X150,293) 

Vehicles ($36,972} {137,951) 176,420 {79$,503) 

Total (1,151,13 $} (202,921 } 176,420 ~ 1,177,639) 

Total net of accumulated depreciation 406,110 361,054 - 767,164 

Total Business-ty capital assets, net $ 5$5,128 $ 363,421 $ (54,183) $ 894,366 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City's Business-type activities as follows: 

Bus Ines s -type Activities : 

Cemetery ~ 493 

Transit 2012,428 

Total 2Q2,921 



CITY OF OJAI 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30.2019 

NOTE 7 —LUNG-TERM LIABILITIES 

A. Summary 

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019: 

Balance at Balance at Due Within 
July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 One Year 

Governmental activities 

Compensated absences $ 379,482 $ 185,859 $ (288,435) $ 276,906 $ 69,227 
Net pension liability 5,028,095 51,564 (225,932) 4,853,727 - 
OPEB 3,543,887 389,966 (324,237) 3,609,616 - 

Totalgovernmental $ 8,951,464 $ 627,389 $ (838,604) $ 8,740,249 $ 69,227 

Business-type activities: 

Compensated absences 

Transit $ 14,059 $ 18,399 $ (17,667) $ 14,791 $ 3,698 

Cemetery 2,027 683 (1,667} 1,043 261 

Net pensron liability 366,646 187,942 (259,475) 295,113 - 

OPEB 257,465 22,741 (69,895) 210,311 - 

Total business-type $ 640,197 $ 229,765 $ (348,704) $ 521,258 $ 3,959 

B. Other Post-employment Benefits (~OPEB) 

Plan Description: 
The City provides post-employment health care benefits through the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act 
(PEMHCA) plan. As a PEMHCA employer, the City is obligated to contribute toward the cost of retiree medical coverage 
for the retiree's lifetime or until coverage is discontinued. The City maintains an "equal" resolution with CaIPERS (executed 
January 2011) defining the level of the City's contribution toward the cost of medical plan premiums for active retired 
employees to be the PEMHCA minimum employer contribution  (MEC).  The  MEC  was $136 per month in 2019. 

The City established a Health Savings Account (HSA) through the International City/County Management Association 
Retirement Corporation (ICMA-RC). Through this arrangement, the City provides a more generous contribution toward 
retiree medical premiums fur certain retirees, based on their employment dates and years of service with the City. 

• All employees hired and council members elected prior to November 1, 2010 that have at least 5 years of  
PERS  service credit with the City and retire from the City (inclusive of the  MEC).  

• Employees hired and Council members elected on or after November 1, 2010 but prior to October 1, 2012 
(November 1, 2012 for Council members) who complete 10 or more years of service with the City and retire 
from the City, and who meet PEMHCA eligibility requirements for medical coverage described above are 
eligible for the increased benefit (inclusive of the  MEC).  

• Employees hired on or after October 1, 2012 and council members elected on or after November 1, 2012 are 
not eligible for an additional benefit beyond the  MEC.  

For those retirees satisfying the employment date and service requirements described on the preceding paragraph the City 
will contribute the following amounts in place of the PEMHCA minimum employer contribution. 

• 100% of retiree's (Single coverage) premium, but no more than the current  PERS  Choice pre-Medicare 
premium rate (Los Angeles Area) 

• Plus, if applicable, 80% of additional premiums for the retiree's spouse (including a surviving spouse 
receiving CaIPERS retirement benefits) and/or other eligible dependents, but not more than 80% of the 
difference between: 

- The Los Angeles Area  PERS  Choice pre-Medicare Two-Party or Family premium rate (as applicable) 
and 

- The Los Angeles Area  PERS  Choice pre-Medicare Single premium rate. 

47 



CIT~ C)F C}JAI 
NC~TES TC) BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS 
June 30 2019 

N(JTE 7 -- L+rDN-TERM LIABILITIES {Continued) 

B. ether Post-ern~loy~nent Benefits {QPEB}~~ontínued} 

Employees covered by benefit terms 

At June 30, 2017 {the census date, the benefit terms covered the following employee: 

Active plan employee 38 
Inactive plan employees or beneficiarïes currently receiving benefits 56 

Total 94 

Net (,~PEB Liability 

The City"s net QPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total {~PEB liability used to 

calculate the net ~PEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 34, 2017. 

Actuat~ial Assumptions. 

The total ~PEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 

actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation: 2.5ú% 

Salary increases: 2.75%. Additional merit-based increases based on CaIPERS merit salary increase tables. 

Investment rate of return: 7.28% 

Healthcare cost trend rates: f.5o~/~ in the first year, trending down to 3.84°/v over 58 years. 

iVlortality rates were based on CaIPERS tables. 

Discount 1Zate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is 7.28%. This is the expected long-term rate of return on City assets using 
investment strategy 1 within the California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust {CERBT}. The projection of cash flows used to determine 
the discount rate assumed that the City contribution will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based 
on those assumptions, tl~e C~PEB plan's fiduciary net position is projected to cover all future ©PEB payments. Therefore, the discount 
rate was set equal to the long-term expected rate. 

Changes in Net ~PEB Liability: 
Total 
C~PEB 

Llab Il~ty 

Plan 
Fiduciary 

Net Po s Rion 

Net 
+aPEB 

Llab Arty/{Asset} 

$ 4,138,994 $ 337,642 3,801,352 

105,971 - 105,971 

299, 827 - 299, 827 

6,909 6,909 

- 314,993 {314,993} 

- 51,736 {51,736} 

- 28,047 {28,047} 

{214,993} {214,993} - 

{51,736} (51,736} - 

- {644) 644 
145,978 127,403 18,575 

$ 4,284,972 $ 465,045 ~ 3,819,927 

Balance at June 30, 2018 

{l~!ieasurerr~ent Date June 30, 2017} 
Changes recognized for the rasurement period: 

Service cost 

Interes t 

Changes of assumptions 

Contributions -employer 

Contributions - implicit subsidy 

Net investment income 

Benefit payments 

.Implicit rate subsidy fulfilled 

Administrative expense 
Net Changes 

Balance at June 30, 2019 

{Measurement Date June 30, 2018) 
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

B. Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB)~Continued~ 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.28%) or one percentage point higher (8.28%) 
follows: 

1%Decrease Discount Rate 1%Increase 

6.28% 7.28% 8.28% 

Net OPEB Liability $ 4,391,529 $ 3,819,927 $ 3,347,573 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's net 

OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower (5.50%) or one percentage point 

higher {7.50%) than current healthcare cost trend rates follows: 

1%Decrease Trend Rate 1%Increase 

(5.50% (6.50% (7.50% 

decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to 

2.84%) 3.84%) 4.84%) 

Net OPEB Liability $ 3,306,772 $ 3,819,927 $ 4,443,532 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB: 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized an OPEB expense of $372,905. At June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 
n----____-- n_~___~~.... 

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 298,651 $ - 

Change in assumptions 5,812 - 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 5,758 

retirement plan investments - - 
,~IU,LLl ~ - 

$298,651 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from City contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Fiscal year Ending June 30, Amount 

2020 $ 2,486 

2021 2,486 

2022 2,485 

2023 2,689 

2024 1,097 

Thereafter 327 
$ 11,570 
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NOTE 7 -- LÚI~-TERiVT LIABILITIES ~Continued~►  

B. tither Post-employment Benefits ~PEB,~ Continued) 

Investments 

The allocation of the plan's invested assets is established by CERBT Strategy 1. The objective is to seek returns that reflect the broad 
investment performance of the financial markets through capital appreciation and investment income. The asset allocations and 
benchmarks for CERBT Strategy 1 are listed below: 

Asset Mass Target Allocation Benchmark 

+Global Equity 57% M SCI All Country world Index IM I {Net} 

Fixed Income 27% Blflomberg Barclays Long Liability Index 

Treasury Inflatifln Prfltected Securities {TIPS} 5% BlflombergBarclays US TIPS Index 

Real Estate Investment Trusts 8% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Liquid Index net 

Commodities 3©/o S&P SCI Total Return Index 

Cash {}°I© 91 Day Treasury Bill 

Total 100°l0 

CaIPERS may overweight or underweight an allocation to a particular asset class based on market, economic, or Ca1PERS policy 
considerations. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 the money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of investment expense, was 7.24 percent. The 
rate was calculated based on the Trust's inception in June 2017. The money-weighted rate or return expresses investment performance, 
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts Invested. 

NC)TE ~ — PENSIC}I''+1 PLAN 

A. general Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan ~escriptit~ns 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City's Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plans, 
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (Ca1PERS~. 
Benefit provls~ons under the Plans are established by State statue and City resolution. Ca1PERS issues publicly available reports that 
include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found 
on the CaIPER website. 

Bene~~s P~ovided 

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who 
must be public employees and benefïciaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, with one year of credit for each year of full 
time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50, or 52 for members beginning service on or 
after January 1, 2013, with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after l0 years ofservice. 
The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefït, or the C}ptional Seitlement 2w Death 
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 
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NOTE 8 —PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

Benefits Provided (Continued) 

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows: 
Miscellaneous 

First Tier Second Tier PEPRA 

Prior to 
Hire Date January 1, 2013 

Benefit formula 2% @ 55 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 
Benefit payments monthly for life 
Retirement age 50-63 
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% to 2.418% 
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 
Required employer contribution 9.409 % + $357,203 

Prior to 
January 1, 2013 

2% @ 60 
5 years service 
monthly for life 

50-63 
1.092% to 2.418% 

7.00% 
8.099% + $381 

On or after 
January 1, 2013 

2% @ 62 
5 years service 
monthly for life 

52-67 
1.00% to 2.50% 

6.25% 
6.842% + $495 

Safety 

Prior to 
Hire Date January 1, 2013 

Benefit formula 2% @ 50 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 
Benefit payments monthly for life 
Retirement age 50-55 
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation N/A 1. 
Required employee contribution rates N/A 
Required employer contribution $68,701 

1. There are no active members in this plan. 

Contributions 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public 
employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. 
Funding contributions for the Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by Ca1PERS. The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional calculated 
dollar amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially 
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan were as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety 

Contributions-employer $ 467,063 $ 119,422 
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I~10TE 8 — PEI~TSI(~1~1 PLAN (continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred C~utflowslInflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2019, the Clíy reported net pension liabilities for Its proportionate shares afthe net poslt~an liability of each Plan as follows: 

Miscellaneous 

Safety 

Proportionate 

Share o f Net 

Pert S lo n I.,lab 111íy 

$ 4,752, 114 

S96,72ó 

$ 5,148, 840 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 201 ~ and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan participants, 
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2017 
and June 30, 2018 was as follows: 

Miscellane~us Safetv  

Proportion-June 30, 2017 0.1243% 0.0o83°fa 

Proportion-June 30, 2018 o.12ó1% 0.0068°!~ 

Change-Increase (Decrease) o,ofll8"/c~ -0.0015% 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $683,ío9. Pension expense represents the change in 
the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes ïn 
investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions ar method., and plan benefits. At June 30, 2019, the City reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the foil©wing sources: 

City contributions subsequent to the measurement dale 
Differences between effected and actual experience 
Changes in assurr~ptions 
Changes in proportion and differences between City 

contributions and proportionate share ofcontributions 
Net difi~erence between projected and actual earnings on 

retlrerr~nt plan 1r1VeStrrtents 

Adjustment due to differences in proportion  

Deferred t~utflows Deferred Inflows of 
ofResources Resources 

$ 597,954 ~ - 
190,855 ó2,o78 

580,681 138,o2ó 

130,038 68,278 

2ó,179 - 

23,181 200, 7ó 1 

$ 1,548,888 $ 469,143 
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N(~►TE ~ -- P~N~{J PLAN {continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension expenses and Deferred C~utflows/Inflows of Resources belated to Pensions {continued} 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net pension 
liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 

X597,954 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting f~•om City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
the pension expenses as follows: 

.~ct~aria~ ~ssumpti©ns  

Fiscal year Ending June 30, 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Amount 

$ 462, 662 

255,035 

{190,416} 

{45,49 ►) 
$ 481,791 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date 
Measurement Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Iïscount Rate 
Inflation 
Payroll growth 
Projected Salary Increase 
Investment Date of Return 

Mortality 

Miscellaneous __ 
June 30, 2017 

June 30, 2018 

Entry-Age Normal Cost Method 

7.15% 

2.50% 

2.75% 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 
7,50% 

Derived using CaIPERS' 
Membership 

Data for all Funds {1) 

Safely.  

June 30, 2017 

June 30, 2018 
Entry-AgeNormal Cost Method 

7.15°~~ 

2.50% 

2.75% 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 
7.50°,/a 

Derived using CaIPERS' 
Membership 

Data for all Funds { 1) 

{ 1) The mortality table used was developed based on CaIPER's specific data. The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of Scale MP 2016. For more details on this table 
please refer to the December 2017 experience study report. 

~hange in 14ssunaptit~ns 

In December 2017, the CaIPERS Board adopted new tnortalily assumptions for plans participating in the Public Employees' Retirement 
Fund {PEKE}. The mortality table was developed from the December 2017 experience study and includes 15 years of projected ongoing 
mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP 2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. The inflation assumption was reduced 
from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent. The assumptions for individual salary increase and overall payroll growth were reduced from 3.00 
percent to 2.75 percent. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be 
used in the calculation of the discount rate for public agency .plans {including PERF C), CaIPERS stress tested plans that would most 
lil~ely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing of tl~e plans, the 
tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal 
bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent is applied to all plans in the Public 
Employees Retirement Fund, including PERF C. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called "~ASB Crossover 
Testing Report" that can be obtained at CaIPERS' website under the GASB 68 section. 
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Nfl► TE 8 -- PEI~ISIOI~i PLAN {Continued} 

B. Pension :Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Referred tJutflowsllnflvws of Resources Related to Pensions {Continued} 

~a1PER.S is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability iVianagement {ALM} review cycle, which 
is scheduled to be completed in February X422. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder 
outreach, For these reasons, ~aIPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for ~ASB o. b7 and 
No. ~8 calculations through at least the 2o2I-22 fiscal year. CaIPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in 
calculation until such time as they have changed their methodology. 

The long-term. expected rate ofreturn on pension plan investments was determined using abuilding-block method in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation} are developed for 
each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, Ca1PEIi.S took into account both short-term and long-term market return 
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound 
returns were calculated over the short-term {first 14 years} and the long-term (11-60 years} using abuilding-block approach. Using the 
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits were calculated for each fund. The expected 
rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single 
equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using the capital 
market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate anal asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

I~1ew 
Strategic Real Return Deal Return 

Asset +Class Allocation fears 1-10{a} Years I1+{b} 

Global Equity 54.4% 4.84°/© 5.~8°/© 

Global Fixed Icorr~ 28.4% 1.00°I° 2.~2°l° 

Inflation Sensitive 4.4% 4.77°l° 1.81°/a 

Private Equity 8.0% x,34% 7.23% 

Real Estate 13.4°l° 3.75% 4.~3°l° 

Liquidity 1.4% 4.44°,/© -4. ~2% 

Total 144.x}% 

{a} An expected inflation of2.4% was used for this period. 
{b} An expected inflation of2.~2% was used for this period. 
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NOTE 8 —PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following represents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as 
well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
1percentage point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 

Miscellaneous Safety 

1 %Decrease 6.15% 6.15% 
Net Pens ion Liability $ 7,165,411 $ 540,226 

Current Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15% 
Net Pension Liability $ 4,752,114 $ 396,726 

1%Increase 8.15% 8.15% 
Net Pens ion Liability $ 2,759,977 $ 279,154 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CaIPERS financial reports. 

C. Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2019, the City had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019. 

NOTE 9 —LIABILITY, WORKERS' COMPENSATION, AND PURCHASED INSURANCE 

A. Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City of Ojai is a member of the California Joint Powers 
Insurance Authority (Authority). The Authority is composed of 121 California public entities and is organized under a 
joint powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authority is to arrange 
and administer programs for the pooling ofself-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange 
for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. The California JPIA began covering claims of its 
members in 1978. Each member government has an elected official as its representative on the Board of Directors. The 
Board operates through anine-member Executive Committee. 

B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority - - 

A revised cost allocation methodology was introduced in 2010-11; however it retains many elements of the previous cost 
allocation methodology. Each member pays an annual contribution (formerly called the primary deposit) to cover 
estimated losses for the coverage period. This initial funding is paid at the beginning of the coverage period. After the 
close of the coverage period, outstanding claims are valued. A retrospective deposit computation is then conducted 
annually thereafter until all claims incurred during the coverage period are closed on a pool-wide basis. This subsequent 
cost re-allocation among members based on actual claim development can result in adjustments of either refunds or 
additional deposits required. 
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NAT 9 -- LIABILITY, wORERS' +Ct)MPENSATIflN, AND PI.TII~CI~AED INSI.Tí~.ANCE {Cflntinued) 

B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority {,Continued 
r 

The total funding requirement for self-insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and pre-funded through 
the annual contribution. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure {payrolls and experience {claims} 
relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool. Additional information regarding the cost allocation methodology is 
provided below. 

Liabili  
In the liability program, claims are pooled separately between police and non-police exposures. { 1 }The payroll of each 
n~.ember is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, 
which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula. {2} The first layer of 
losses includes incurred costs up to X30,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total 
incurred casts within the first layer. {3)  The second layer of Tosses includes incurred costs from $30,000 to ~7~0,000 for 
each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred costs within the second layer. {4} Incurred 
ct~sts 1n excess of $750,000 up to the reinsurance attachment point of $S million are distributed based on the outcome of 
cost allocation within the first and second loss layers. {~) Costs of covered claims from 5 million to $10 million are paid 
under a reinsurance contract subject to a X2.5 million annual aggregate deductible. Costs of covered claims from $ to 
million to 15 minion are paid under two reinsurance contracts subject to a combined $3 million annual aggregate 
deductible. Can a cumulative basis for all 2010-11 reinsurance contracts, the annual aggregate deductible is $5.5 million. 
(~} Costs of covered claims from $15 million up to $50 mlll~on are covered through excess Insurance policies. 

The overall coverage limit for each member, including all layers of coverage, is X50 million per occurrence. 

Costs of covered claims for subsidence fosses are paid by reinsurance and excess insurance with a pooled sub-limit of 
3 ~ million per occurrence. This 3 S million subsidence sub-limit is composed of {a) $5 million retained within the pool's 

SIR, {b~ ~ 10 million in reinsurance and {c} $20 million in excess insurance. The excess insurance layer has a $20 million 
annual aggregate. 

workers' Compensation 
In the workers' compensation program, claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and fire) and non-
public safety exposures. {1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable 
credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payl-uli and the weight applied. 
to losses within the formula. {2} The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $50,000 for each occurrence and is 
evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred costs within the first layer. {3~ The second layer of losses includes 
incurred costs from X50,000 to 100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred 
costs within the second layer. {4) Incurred costs in excess of ~ 100,000 up to the reinsurance attachment point of ~~ million 
are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers. {5) Costs of covered claims 
from million up to statutory limits are paid under a reinsurance policy. Protection is provided per statutory liability 
under California workers' Col~l.pensation Law, 

Employer's Liability losses are pooled among members up to million. Coverage from $~ rrlillion to .4 million is 
purchased as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer's Liability losses from ~~ million to $10 million are pooled 
among members. 

C. Purchased Insurance 

Pollution Legal .Liability Insurance 
The City of Ojai participates In the pollution legal 1lablllty Insurance program {formerly called environmental insurance), 
which is available through the Authority. The policy covers sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, 
and storm drains owned by the City of +jai. Coverage is on a claims-made basis. There is a $50,040 deductible. The 
Authority has a limit of ~ 10 million for the 3-year period from July 1, 2017 through July 1, 200. 
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NOTE 9 —LIABILITY, WORKERS' COMPENSATION, AND PURCHASED INSURANCE {Continued) 

C. Purchased Insurance (Continued) 

PropertX Insurance 
The City of Ojai participates in the all-risk property protection program of the Authority. This insurance protection is 
underwritten by several insurance companies. City of Ojai property is currently insured according to a schedule of covered 
property submitted by the City of Ojai to the Authority. City of Ojai property currently has all-risk property insurance 
protection in the amount of $16,408,846. There is a $5,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle 
insurance, which has a $1,000 deductible. Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective 
adjustments. 

Earthquake and Flood Insurance 
The City of Ojai purchases earthquake and flood insurance on a portion of its property. Z'he earthquake insurance is part 
of the property protection insurance program of the Authority. City of Ojai property currently has earthquake protection 
in the amount of $8,810,824. There is a deductible of 5% per unit of value with a minimum deductible of $100,000. 
Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and al•e not subject to retrospective adjustments. 

i'rimP Tnc~~ran~P  

The City of Ojai purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with a $2,500 deductible. The fidelity 
coverage is provided through the Authority. Premiums are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments. 

D. Adequacy of Protection 

During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or judgments that 
exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There were also no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage in 
2018-19. 

As of June 30, 2019, the City has no uninsured occurrences. The City has not used an actuary in determining the liability 
reserve if needed. Because actual claim liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation and changes in legal 
doctrines and damage awards, the process used in computing claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact 
amount. Claims are evaluated periodically to take into account recently settled claims, the frequency of claims and other 
economic and social factors. 

NOTE 10 —CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The City participates in certain federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by 
the grantors or their representatives. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be 
material. 

The City is involved in several pending lawsuits of a nature common to many similar jurisdictions. City management estimates that 
potential claims against the City, not covered by insurance, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the 
City. 

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, regulates the City's ability to impose, increase and extend taxes, 
assessments, and fees. Any new, increased, or extended taxes, assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218 require 
voter approval before they can be implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that these taxes, assessments, and fees are subject 
to the voter initiative process and may be rescinded in the future by the voters. Therefore, the City's ability to finance the services for 
which the taxes, assessments, and fees were imposed may be significantly impaired. 
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N~TE 11— NET PC~SITIC}l~ ANLI EIJNÍ~ BAL~.N+CES 

GASB Statement No. 63 requires that the difference between assets added to the deferred outflows of resources and liabilities added to 
the deferred inflows ofres©urces be reported as net position. Net  position is classif"led as either net investment in capital assets, restricted, 
ar unrestricted. 

A. Net Position 

Net position is divided into three categories under GASB Statement  Na.  63. These categories apply only to net position 
as determined at the government-wide level, and are described below; 

I~Tet Investment in Capital Assets, describes the portion of Net Positión which is represented by the current net book value 
of the City's capital assets, Tess the outstanding balance of any debt Issued to finance these assets. 

Restricted describes the portion of I~et Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of agreements 
with outside pa.~rties, governmental regulations, laws, or ether restrictions which the City cannot unilaterally alter. These 
principally include developer fees received for use on capital projects, debt service requirements, and redevelopment 
funds restricted to low and moderate Income housing purposes. 

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted as to use. 

B. Fund Balances 

Fund balances ofthe governmental funds are reported separately within classifications based on a hierarchy of constraints 
placed an the use of those resources. The classifications are based an the relative strength of the constraints that control 
how the specific amounts can be spent. The classlficatlons are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and 
unassigned fund balance. The nanspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either not in spendable form or are legally ar contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund 
balances are those that have externally imposed restrictions an their usage by creditors, such as through debt covenants, 
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations. 

V~hen both restricted and unrestricted resources are available far use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources 
first, followed by the unrestricted, committed, assigned and unassigned resources as they are needed. 
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~(~TE 11 -- i'~~T P~SITIC)1~ A1VD FUI~`1) BALAI~~~S (+Continued] 

B. Fund Balances ~Continued~ 

The constraints ~~aced on fund balance for the major governmental funds and all ether governmental funds at June 3~, 2úI9 are 
as follows: 

Capital tither 
Improvements Governmental 

General Fund Fund Funds Total 
I~onspendable: 

Due from successor agency $ 2,242,417 $ - $ - $ 2,242,407 
Total Nonspendable 2,242,407 - - 2,242,407 

Restricted for: 
Community development - - 246 24~ 
Libraries - - 2$,329 28,329 
Libbey Bowl deferred maintenance - - b~,223 x,223 
Streets, b~ceways, parks, and 

ether related purposes - - ~24,b75 ~24,~75 

Transit - - 124, I23 I24,123 
Employee benefits 2,837 - - 2,$37 
Total Restricted 2,837 - 843,596 84,433 

Assigned far: 
Capital imps©vements - 49,890 - 49,890 

E~Uipment replacement - - 322,946 322,946 

Total assigned - 49,890 322,946 372,836 

Unassigned: 
Unassigned 4,118,005 - (62,01 ~) 4,(}55,989 
Total unaSS~gned 4,118,(}0,5 - {62,016) 4,(155,989 

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) $ b,3~3,249 $ 49,890 $ 1,104,526 $ 7,517,d~5 
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NfJTE 12 — SU~~E~SC}R A~EI~CY 

Notes and Loans Receivable 

The Redevelopment Agency's Low and Moderate Housing Fund entered into an agreement on December 21, 1991 to loan Montgomery 
C)aks Associates, a California limited partnership, the amount of $250,000. As of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance is $250,000 
plus accrued interest of ~ 168,913. The purpose of the loan is to provide financial assistance for the land acquisition and predeveloprnent 
expenses of a 21 unit affordable housing complex. The terms of the loan call for a repayment on December 23, 2064 for principal and 
simple interest of ~%per annum. 

The Redevelopment Agency's Low and Moderate Mousing Fund has loaned $3©0,000 to the Area Mousing Authority at 0% interest 
with no specific due date. 

The Redevelopment Agency's Low and Moderate Housing Fund has loaned ~ individuals funds for housing rehabilitation in the amount 
of ~ 113,914 plus accrued interest of X44,784. These loans carry interest at rates ranging from 0% to 6% and are normally due when the 
properly is sold or refinanced. 

The Redevelopment Agency's Low and Moderate Housing Fund entered into an agreement on C►ctOber 10, 2000 and loaned $550,000 
to the Cabrillo Economic Development Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation at 0% interest. The terms of the 
loan call for a repayment at the end of b0 years. The full amount is still outstanding as of June 30, 2018. 

Qn February 1, 2012 the Low and Moderate Housing Successor Agency assumed the notes and loans receivable previously held by the 
Redevelopment Agency. 

As of June 30, 2019, loans receivable totaled $1,427,611. 

Loans Payable 

~n February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency assumed loans due to the City ofjai previously held by the former Redevelopment Agency. 
The amount due to the City of Ojai as of ,lone 30, 2019 was $2,242,407 including $1,744,254 in accrued interest. 

Changes in Long~Term Liabilities 

Long term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at Due Within 

July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 C)ne Year 

Loans Payable t© City ofC~jai 2,504,780 $ 29,32 ~i {292,005) ~ 2,242,40 / ~ 292,005 

Total Successor Agency $ 2,504,780 ~ 29,b32 $ {292,005~ $ 2,242,407 ~ 292,005 
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N+QTE 12 — SIT~~ESS+OR A~EI~ï~~ (+~ontinued} 

C~peratin~Lease  

The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency .has enured into an operating lease agreement for property used for the Park and 
Fide. The lessor is the Ojai CJn1~ed School District and the termination date of the lease ~s December 31, 2023. The lease may be 
canceled at any time by consent of both parties. The annual rent for the Park and Ride is based on available parking. spaces {71). As of 
June 30, 2018, the amount was 7o per space which increases annually by the Consumer Price Index (CPI. The annual lease for the 
Park and Ride, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, was $25,729, which will also increase annually by the CPI. 

Future annual lease payments are as follows; 

Fiscal wear 
EndinJune 30, Amount 

2020 $ 25, 729 
2021 25,729 
2022 25

~~

,

~

~
`"

2~ 
202~ 2J, f L.l 

2024 25,729 

~ 128,~45 
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REQ~.7I~:~I) S~1~PL~;MEI~TA~, ~~iFOI~M~TIQ~ ~E~TIC,IIY 



AI~II~ ~I-~AI~i~EB IN FCJNI? BALANCE - BtJI)GET Al`~1I.) A~T[.TAL 
GENERAL FLïD 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3©, 2fl 19 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget - 

t~riginal Final Amounts Positive {Negatïve} 
REVENUES 

Taxes: 
Property 1,953,71 fl 1,953,710 $ 1,951,016 $ I2,ó94} 

Sales 1,500,4fl0 I,544,fl04 1,753,908 253,908 

Transient occupancy tax 2,850,010 2,850,010 2,970,5 I S 124,SOS 
Licenses, permits, and fees 1,540,490 1,540,090 1,161,846 (378,284) 
Fines and forfeitures 12,280 12,284 11,575 {705} 

Use of money and property 40,044 40,000 115,208 75,208 
Intergovernmental: 

Other 312,850 312,850 350,009 37,1 S9 

Motor Vehicle In ileU 857,Só0 857,564 874,286 12,726 
Charges for services 945,394 9flS,390 941,359 35,9óg 

{ether revenue 174,410 174,410 164,396 (l 0,0  i  4~ 

Total revenues 14,l4ó,344 14, 146,344 10,294,078 143,778 

E~Et~+i~}ITURES 
Current: 

General government: 
City council 85,340 92,394 94,731 1,659 

City manager 6x69,884 S6ó,989 649,638 (42,649) 

City treasurer 5,414 5,410 5,135 27S 

City attorney 171,400 226,404 216,912 9,088 

City finance (76,220 684,455 637,395 46,664 
City clerk 186,410 191,19$ 1óS,295 25,903 

Arts commission 62,670 62,670 47,514 15, 156 

Non-departmental 837,434 837,434 814,958 22,472 

Total general government 2,694,360 2,666,142 2,587,578 78,564 

Public safety: 
Police 3,445,494 3,446,659 3,431,656 15,003 

Total public safety 3,445,494 3,446,659 3,431,656 15,003 

Public warps 1,763,830 1,776,357 1,838,085 (61,728} 

Communtiy development 1,132,590 1,137,474 882,894 254,576 

Parks and recreation 819,284 830,140 1,447, 149 ~2 17,049) 

Capital outlay 15,000 15,000 2,809 12,191 

Total expenditures 9,870,550 9,871,728 9,790,171 81,557 

Excess of revenues over 
{under) expenditures 275,?S4 274,572 499,907 225,335 

{Continued} 
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Continued} 

Variance with 

_ Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget - 
C}riginal Final Amounts Positive (Negative) 

OTHER FI~IANI✓I1~r1G St~I1RCES (USES) 
Transfers out {250,840} $ 1250,840) ~ X283,588) $ (32,748} 

Total other f nancing sources (uses} {250,840} (250,840) {283,588} {32,748} 

Net change in fund balance 24,910 23,732 216,319 192,587 

Fund balance - July 1, 2018 6,146,930 6,146,930 6,146,930 - 
Fund balance -June 30, 2{119 $ 6,171,840 6,170,662 $ 6,363,249 $ 192,387 
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CITY (~F (~~AI 
SCI-IED~.TLE OF PI~OPOI~.TIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
Last 10 ~ears~ 

As of June 3 0, 201 ~ 

The fallowing table provides required supplementary ïnformation regarding the City's Pension Plans. 

2415 241b 2417 2418 

Proportion ofthe net pension iiabiliiy 

Proportionate share of the net pensían liability 

Covered payroll 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 
percentage of covered payroll 

Plan's total pension liability 

Plan's fiduciary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
fatal pension liability 

0.06463°/© 0.05755°1° 0.05620% 0.05440°/© 

$ 4,021,490 ~ 3,949,970 $ 4,862,637 ~ 5,394,741 

~ 1,729,126 $ 1,920,727 ~ 1,832,505 ~ 1,855,753 

232.57°/© 205.65°l© 265.35°l© 290.70% 

~ 30,829,966,631 $ 31,771,217,402 $ 33,358,627,624 ~ 37,161,348,332 

$ 24,607,502,515 $ 24,907,305,871 ~ 24,705,532,291 ~ 27,244,095,376 

79.82% 78.40°1° 74.06°l0 73.31% 

2419 

Proportion of the net pensían liability 0.05343% 

Praportíonate share of the net pensían liability 5,14$,840 

Covered payroll ~ 2,024,387 

Prapartionate share of the net pension liability as 
percentage of covered payroll 254.34% 

Plan's fatal pension liability . 38,944,855,364 

Plan's fiduciary net position $ 29,308,589,559 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

fatal pension liability ~ 75.26% 

1~lotes t4 5chedute: 

Changes in assumptions; 

In 2018, inflation was changed from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent and individual salary increases and overall payroll growth was 

reduced from 3.00 percent to 2.75 percent. 

In 2017, as part of the Asset Liability 1vlanagement review cycle, the discount rate was changed from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. 

In 2016, the discount rate was changed from 7.50 percent (net of administrative expense} to 7.65 percent to correct for an adjustment to 
exclude adminístratïve expenses. 

In 2015, amounts reporied as changes in assumptions resulted primarily from adjustments to expected retirement ages of general employees. 

~`-Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only five years are shown. 
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SCKEI~v~LE ~~ PENSIaN C~NTRIBUTIa~s 
Last 10 Yearn` 

As of June 30, 2019 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the City's Pension Plans. 

2415 2~1~6 2017 2418 

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined} $ 546,420 ~ 502,006 ~ 535,288 $ 5$6,485 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions {546,420} {502,006) X535,288) {586,485) 

Contribution deficiency texcess) ~ - ~ - ~ - ~ ~ - 

Covered payroll $ 1,920,72? $ 1,832,505 $ 1,855,753 ~ 2,024,387 

Contributions as a percentage of covered pa}roll 28.45% 27.39°/fl 28.84°/Q 28.97% 

2úI9 

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) ~ 597,954 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
C©ntribUtlons {597,954} 

Contribution deficiency {excess $ - 

Covered payroll $ 2,228,644 
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 26.83% 

Notes to Scheúuic 

Valuation Date: 6/30/2016 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for fiscal 

year 20I 6/2017 were derived from the June 30, 2016 funding valuation report. 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Amortizatio~l Method/Periad For details, see June 30, 2016 funding 

valuation report. 

Inflation 2.75% 

Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service 

Payroll Growth 3.00°/© 

Investment Date of Return 7.0% net of pension plan investment and 

administrative expenses; includes inflation. 

Retirement Age The probabilities of retirement are based on 

the 2010 CaIPERS Experience Study for the 

period from 1997 to 2007. 

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on 

the 2010 CaIPERS Experience Study for the 

period from 1997 to 2007. Pre-retirement and 

post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years 

of projected mortality improvement using 

Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries. 

*-Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only five years are shown. 
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SCHEDULE C~F CHAI~t~ES I~t THE I~TET t~PEB LIABiLITi' A1~D RELATED RATIt)S 
Last 1 ~ ~ears * . 
As of June 3 ~, 2019 

Measurement Period 
Total {JPE~ Liability 

Service cost 

Interest tin the total DPEB liability 
Actual and expected experience difference 
Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments 
Implicit rate subsidy fulfilled 

I~et change in total i~PEB Liability 
Total C~PEB liability- beginning 
Total ~PEB liability- ending {a) 

Plan Fiduciary IV~et Position 
Contribution -employer 
I~et investment income 
Benefit pay~:nents 
Implicit rate subsidy fulfilled 
Administrative expense 

1~1et change in plan fiduciary net position 
Dian fiduciary net position- beginning 
Plan fiduciary net position- ending {b~  

2019 2U18 

~ l úS,971 $ 1 ú3,úú9 

299,827 290,203 

6,9ú9 

{214,993} {222,ú46) 

{S 1,736~ ~ {48,225) ~ 
145,978 122,941 

4,138,994 4,016,ú53 
~ 4,284,972 $ 4,13 8,994 

~ 366,729 $ 370,271 

28,047 Z7,83Z 

{214,993) {222,046) 

{S 1,736) {48,225} 

{644} .,..,._..~ _ ~_ _...~._ _ ... { 129) 

127,4ú3 127,1ú3 

331,64Z 209,939 

$ 465,045 ~ 337,642 

het ~PEB liability -ending {a}-(b} $ 3,819,9.27 $ 3,801,352 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total t~PEB liability 10.85°la 8.16©10 

~`- Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown. 
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~;ITX ~► F C)JAI 
SCHEI)ULE ~F I~PE~3 CO~ITRIBUTIC~I~S 
Last 10 ~ears ~ 
As of June 30, 201 ~ 

The following table provides required supplementary inf©rmati©n regarding the +pity's C~PE~3. 

2úl9 2i}í8 

Actuarially .Determined Contribution (ARC) 
Contributions in relation to the ARC 
Contribution deficiency {excess) 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll  

Nates  to Schedule 

Valuation Date: 6/30/2017 

$ 366,729 ~ 370,271 

(298,65 ~ ~ (295,928) 

~ 68,078 $ 74,343 ..  

2,254,260 $ 2,193,927 

13.25°/© 13.49% 

Discount Rate: 7.28°/a 

~ glary Increases 2.875% 

Assumptions and Methods 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Amortization Method 
Amortization Period 

Inflation 

Assumed Payroll Growth 

Healthcare Trend Rates 

Rate of Return on Assets 

Mortality Rate 

Retirement Rates  

Entry age normal, level percent of pay 

Closed period, level percent of pay 

20 years 

2.50% 

2.750% 

7.{~fl~/a, trending down to 3.84~/~ 

7.28% 

CaIPERS Rates. See appendix 

CaIPERS Rates. See appendix 

-Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown. 
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C~TY aF OJAI 
DESCRIPTItJN +~F NOI~IMAJt~R GO►VERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Jun e 3 ~}, 2 ~} 19 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds derived from specific revenue sources {other than special assessments 
or major capital projects} that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These funds are required by statute, 

charter provisions, or ordinance to finance particular functions or activities ofgovernment. The specific special revenue funds 
utilized by the City are shown below: 

The Libbey Dowl Maintenance Fund is used to account for the receipt of the ticl~et surcharge for facility 
maintenance. 

The has Tax Fund is used to account for State revenue received pursuant to Street and ~-Iighway Code Sections 21 {}3, 
2105, 214, 2147, and 2147.5 to fund maintenance and construction of streets and roans that are not funded through 
another source. 

The Drainage Fund is used to account for fees collected to assist the City for future drainage maintenance and. 
projects. 

The Bicycle and Pedestrian Fund is used to account for the revenue receïved through fold Coast Transit and VCTC. 
These are Article 3 funds to be used for projects and maintenance for bicycle and pedestrian right of ways. 

The Street Lighting Fund is used to account for assessments received from residents to assist ïn the operation and 
repair of the City 's street lights. 

The Community Development ~31ock errant Fund ïs used to account for federal revenue from the Community 
Development Block grant. 

The Library Special Tax Fund is used to account for assessments receïved from residents to assist in the operations  
anà  maintenance of the City's library and its expenditures. 

The Plaza Maintenance Fund is used to account for assessments received from the district property owners for the 
maintenance of downtown plaza. 

CAPITAL PRt~~ECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds are used for the accumulation of the financial resources needed far the acquisition of equipment and 
technology {other than those financed by the proprietary funds}. The specific capital projects fund utilized by the City are 
shown below: 

The Park Acquisition Fund is used to account for developer fees for the acquisition, development, and 

enhancement of neighborhood and community park and recreation facilities. 

The Equipment Replacement Fund is used to account for costs associated with the replacement of vehicles, 
technology, and efficiency-enhancing equipment. 

The Transit Replacement Fund is used to account for t11e maintenance and replacement of transit equipment. 

.• 
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~ITY (3►F C}JAI 
C~MBII~INCr BALAI~ICE S~-IFFY 
I'~1t~I~MÀJ~R ~(~VEIZI~MEI~ITAL FUI~IDS 

June 30, 2019 

Special Revenue Funds 

Libbey Bowl Bicycle and Street 

Maintenance C~as Tax Drainage Pedestrian Lighting 

ÀSSETS 

Cash and investments $ ób,223 ~ 3ú3,2b0 $ ó2,4ó8 ~ 111,323 ~ 127,798 

Accounts receivable, net - 13,202 - - 1,782 

Total assets $ óó,223 $ 31ó,4ó2 ó2,4ó8 ~ 111,323 ~ 129,580 

LIA.BII.,iT~S A1~fiD ~U1~1D►  B.~►I~AC~S 

Ltab111tleS: 

Accounts payable $ - $ - ~ - ~ - $ 2bó 

Accrued liabilities - - - - - 
Due to other funds - _ - - 

Total liabilities - - - - 2ób 

Fund balances: 
Restricted óó,223 31ó,4b2 ó2,4b8 111,323 129,314 

Assigned - - - - - 
Unassigned - - - - - 

T©tal fund balances ób,223 31ó,4ó2 ó2,4ó8 111,323 129,314 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ ób,223 $ 31b,4ó2 $ ó2,4b8 $ 1113323 ~ 129,580 
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Capital Projects Funds 

Community Transit 
Development Library Plaza Park Equipment Equipment 
Block grant Special Tax Maintenance Acquisition Replacement Replacement Totals 

~ ~d~ ~ ~S 4~~ ~ _ ~ s ~nQ a ~Z~ ~~~ ~ »a 1~~ ~ ~ t~~ ai l 

~ L40 ~ Ló,.~Ly ~ S,bU4 ~ ~, l Uó ~ .SJ /,3 1 O ~ ! L4,1 LJ ~ !,1 ó4, / óL 

$ - $ - $ 5,133 $ 
_ _ ~ ~17 

- - 65,620 

246 28,329 - 

- $ 14,370 $ - $ 19,769 
- - - ~~~~ 

- 14,370 - 80,256 

5,108 - 124,123 843,596 

- 322,946 - 322,946 

- - - (62,016) 

L~O Ló,JL7 (OL,UlOJ J,! Vó JLL,7~0 1G~t,1GJ 1,1V~t,JGO 

$ 246 $ 28,329 $ 3,604 $ 5,108 $ 337,316 $ 124,123 $ 1,184,782 
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CITY flF QJAI 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Special Revenue Funds 

REVENUES 
Other taxes and assessments 
Ilse of money and property 
Intergovenunental: 

Other 
Charges for services 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public works 
Community development 
Libraries 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
{under) expenditures 

t.~THER FIN~NCII~1G SOURCES {USES) 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances -July 1, 2018 

Fund balances -June 30, 2019 

Libbey Bowl Bicycle and Street 

Maintenance Gas Tax Drainage Pedestrian Lighting 

$ _ $ - ~ - $ - $ 91,633 

- 5,142 1,415 3,293 2,477 

- 292,564 - 798 - 
~, ~ , , ~ _ - 

28,115 297,706 1,415 4, 091 94,110 

- - 3,300 - 68,188 

- - 3,300 - 68,188 

28,115 297,706 {1,885) 4,091 25,922 

- - - - 7,810 

{12,582) {59,532) - {48,991} - 

{12,582} {59,532} - {48,991} 7,810 

15,533 238,174 {1,885) {44,900} 33,732 

50,690 78,288 64,353 15b,223 95,582 

$ 6b,223 $ 316,462 $ 62,468 $ 111,323 $ 129,314 
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Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds 

Community Transit 

Development Library Plaza Park Equipment Equipment 

$lock Grant Special Tax 1Viaintenance Acquisition Replacement Replacement Totals 

$ - $ 110,956 $ 145,575 $ - ~ - ~ - $ 348,164 

- 784 2,QQ0 114 ó,3Q2 6,954 28,481 

- - - - 670 195,QQ0 489,432 

- - - - 28,115 

- - - - 11,2QQ - 11,2QQ  

i ii,t°tv i~tr,~r~ 

- - - - - - 71,488 

- - 131,828 - - - 131,828 

- 111,620 - - - - 111,620 

- - - - 174,349 - 174,349 

- 111,620 131,828 - 174,349 - 489,2$5 

- 12Q 15,747 114 {156,177) 201,954 415,707 

- - 53,Q00 - 121,122 - 181,932 

_ _ - - - { 197,366} (318,471 } 

- - 53,OOQ - 121,122 { 197,366} { 136,539} 

- 12Q 68,747 I 14 (35,Q55} 4,588 279,168 

246 28,209 {130,763} 4,994 358,001 119,535 825,358 

$ 246 $ 28,329 ~ {62,016} $ S,1 Q8 $ 322,946 $ 124,123 $ 1, I Q4,526 
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SCHEDULE CAF EVENLTES, E:PENDITIJ~ES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND A+~TUAL 
LIBBER BC~~VL MAINTENANCE FUND 
Far the Fiscal 'Year Ended June 3a, 2019 

~!ariance Wlth 

Flnal Budget Actual Flnal Budget - 
Amaunts Amounts Positive (Negative} 

REVENUES 
Charges far services $ 15,aaa $ 28,115 $ 13,115 

Total revenues 1 S,aaa 28,115 13,115 

(ITHER ~~IN~AN~IN+ C?UR~ES {USES) 
Transfers out - (12,582} (12,582) 

Total other financing sources {uses) - X12,582} {12,582} 

Net change in fund balance 1 S,aaO 15,333 533 

Fund balance -July 1, 2a 18 Sa,~9a Sa,69a -  

Fund balance -June 3a, 201 ~ $ 65,60 $ ~~,223 $ 533 
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CITY C~►F JAI 
~~I-~E~ULE OF REVENUES, E~PEI~I~ITU.ES,  AIS  ~I-IA.I~ES I FLl~I~1L) B.ALAI~ICE 
BUDGET AI~I.~  ANUAL  
GAS TAB SPECIAL REVEI`~UE FUND 
For the Fiscal dear  Endeví  June 3~, 201 

Varïance with 
Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amounts Amounts Posïtïve {%legatïve} 
REVENUES 

Intergovernmental: 
+ether $ 323,520 292,564 $ {3,956} 

Use of money and property - 5,142 S, l42 

Total revenues 323,520 297,706 {25,814} 

C~TI~ER FINA~ICIN+~ SGIURES {USES) 
Transfers out - {59,532} {59,532) 

Total other financing sources {uses} - {59,532} (59,532} 

let change in fund balance 323,520 238,174 {$5,346} 

Fund balance -July 1, 2018 7$,288 78,288 - 

Fund balance -June 30, 2úl9 401,8.08 316,462 $ {8,346} 
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CITY t)F' t~JAI 
SCHEDt.TLE C}F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANI~ CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUI.?GET AND ACTUAL 
DRAINAGE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
For the Fiscal dear Ended June 30, 2019 

Variance with 

Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Am©unts Amounts PosTtive ~Ne~ative) 

REVENUES 
Charges far services $ 12,000 $ - $ (12,000) 

Use of money and property - 1,415 1,415 

Total revenues 12,000 1,415 X10,585) 

EXPENI~►ITURES 
Current: 

Public works 3,300 3,300 - 

Total expenditures 3,300 3,300 - 

Excess of revenues over 
(under} expenditures 8,700 { 1,$85) (10,585) 

(~TEF~ FII~ANC~N~G S{)UI +~ES {USES} 
Transfers out (100,000) - 100,000 

Total other f nancing sources (uses ~ 100,000) - 100,000 

Net change in fund balance {91,300) {1,885} 89,415 

Fund balance -July 1, 2018 64,353 64,353 - 

Fund balance -June 30, 2019 (26,947) ~ 62,468 $ 89,415 
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CITY C)F JAI 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, E~PENDITURE~, AND ~FIAN~ES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND  ANUAL  
BIC~YCILE AN:[~ PEDESTRIAN SPECIAL REVENUE FC1ND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2419 

Variance with 
Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amounts Amounts Positive {Neartive} 

REVENUES 
Use of money and property ~ - $ 3,293 $ 3,293 
Intergovernmental: 

CJther - 798 798 

Tatal revenues - 4,491 4,091 

+OTHER EINANCIN SURGES {USES} 
Transfers out (107,754} {48,991 } 58,759 

Total ether financing sources (uses) {107,754} (48,991} 58,759 

Net change in fund balance (107,754) (44,9C}ú) 62,854 

Fund balance -July 1, 2418 156,223 156,223 - 

Fund balance -June 30, 2019 $ 4.8,473 111,323 $ 62,850 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FLTNI~ BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STREET LIGHTING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
For the Fiscal dear Ended. June 30, 2019 

Variance with 

Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amounts Amounts Positive {Negative} 

REVENUES 
Other taxes and assessments $ 94,050 $ 91,633 $ {2,417} 

Use of money and properly - 2,477 2,477 

Total revenues 94,050 94,110 60 

EXPEI'~II~ITURES 
Current: 

Public wo~•l~s 109,500 68,188 41,312 

Total expenditures 109,500 68,188 41,312 

Excess of revenues over 
{under} expenditures { 15,450} 25,922 41,372 

C1THE~t F~1~1~ANCING St~►URCES (USES) 
Transfers in 7,810 7,$10 - 

Total other financing sources {uses} 7,810 7,810 - 

Net change in fund balance {7,640} 33,732 41,372 

Fund balance -July 1, 2018 95,582 95,582 - 

Fund balance -June 30, 2019 ~ 87,942 $ 129,314 $ 41,372 
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CITY CAF CJJAI 
SCEI~ULE C)F R.EVEN~..~ES, E~PEI~b!ITUF~..ES, AND CI~AI~IES IN FLTNI~ BALANCE 
BURET ANI) ACTUAL 
CC)1VI11~IL~1IT~ DEVELDPIENT BLC~CI~ GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FI..TNI~ 
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 3U, 2~ ~ ~ 

Variance with 
Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amcunts Amounts Positive {Negative) 

I~.EV~~E 
Intergflvernmental ; 

C~the1- $ - $ - ~ - 

Total revenues 

~PENI~ITUES 
Capital outlay - - - 

Total expenditures - - - 

Net change in fund balance - - - 

Fund balance -July 1, 20I8 246 246 ~ - 

Fund balance -June 3~}, 219 246 $ 246 $ - 
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~IT~ C}F OJAI 

SCHEI)LJLE OF R.EVENtJES, E~PENDITLIRES, ANI3 CHANGES IN FCJNNI~ BALANCE 
BUDGET AN~I~ ACTÜAL 
LIBRÀP~.Y SPECIAL TAB SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended .Tune 3fl, 2019 

Variance with 
Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amounts Amounts Positive {Negative} 
R.EVEI~~JES 

Other taxes and assessments $ 111,520 $ 110,956 $ {564} 
Use of money and property - 784 784 

Total revenues 111,520 111,740 22fl 

E~PET~iTU~.ES 
Current: 

Libraries 111,620 111,620 - 

Total expenditures 111,620 111,620 - 

Net change in fund balance { 100} 120 220 

Fund balance -July 1, 2018 28,209 28,209 - 

Fund balance -June 3fl, 2fl 1 ~ $ 28,109 $ 2$,329 220 
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SCI-JEI~iJLE ~~ ~..EVE~~Es, E~PEI`~I~ITUP.ES, ~.~ CxAr~Es F~I~ BALANCE 
~~~~~~ Ar~I~ ~.~~~~~ 
PLAZA Zt~~AII'~ITE~IACE SPECIAL I~EVE2~I.JE FtTI~IJ 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3~, 219 

REVENUES 
Other taxes and assessments 
tJse of money and property 

Total revenues 

Current. 
Community development 

Total expenditures 

let change in fund balance 

CiTHER FINANIN~ St~U~.CES {USES} 

Operating transfers in 

Total other f nancing sources (uses} 

Excess of revenues and other financing 
sources over (under} expenditures and 
other financing uses 

Fund balance - July 1, 2018 

Fund balance - June 30, 2019 

variance with 

Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amounts Amounts Positive (I~Iegative) 

~ l77,89ú $ 145,575 $ {32,315} 

2,60 2,OOo {600} 

üV,~T'l V i -T7,J7~ {~L.,J 1 ~} 

102,250 131,828 {29,578} 

102,250 131,828 (29,578} 

78,240 15,747 {62,493} 

53,000 53,000 - 

53,000 53,000 - 

131,240 68,747 (62,493} 

(130,763} (134,7{3) - 

~ 477 $ ~~62,01 b} $ .02,493 ) 
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CITY C}F f~JAI 
SCHEDULE {~F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AI~1D CHANCrES IN RIND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
PAI~:K ACQUISITIC)N CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Variance with 

Final Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amounts Amounts Positive (Negative) 

RE~I~IUES 
Use of money and proper-íy ~ - $ 114 ~ 114 

Total revenues - 114 114 

EXPENi)IT~1Rl~S 
Current: 

Parrs and recreation 4,000 -  4,000 

Total expenditures 4,000 -  4,000 

Net change in fund balance (4,000} 114 4,114 

Fund balance -July 1, 2018 4,994 4,994 - 

Fund balance - June 30, 2019 $ 994 $ 5,108 ~ 4,114 
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i,.i I ~ ~~ ~~~1 

SCI~EI)ULE ~~ R.EVENUES, E~~I'ENI~ITURE~, ANI) CHANCES IN FLTNI~ BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
EC~UIPMENT REPLACEMENT CAPITAL PRUJECTS FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

~~~~~~~~ 

Use of money and property 
Intergovernmental: 

Other 
C.~ther revenue 

Total revenues 

E~E1I~ITURE 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under} 
expenditures 

t~T~Fi FI1AI~II~í+~ ~(~IJR+CE ~I.TSES} 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses} 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance -July 1, 2(118 

Fund balance -June 30, 2019 

Variance with 

Final Budget AGtual Final Budget - 

AmountS AmOUntS Posittve (Negative) 

í~i ~ ~} ~„/,3ú2 ~JJ ~,3V~ 

- ~70 d70 

- 11,200 11,200 

- 18,172 18,172 

~8,{00 174,349 (105,749) 

~8,~00 174,349 ~105,749} 

{~8,~00} (15~,177} (87,:17%) 

108,540 121,122 12,582 

108,540 121,122 12,582 

39,940 ~(35,055) (74,995) 

35 8,001 3 58,001 - 

$ 397,941 $ 322,94~ ~ (74,995} 
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CITY CiF C~JAI 
SCHEDULE CAF REVENUES, E~PENDITUI~ES, AND CHAN+~ES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUI~CrET ANI~ ACTUAL 
TIZ.ANSIT EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 3~, 2419 

Variance with 

Fínal Budget Actual Final Budget - 

Amounts Amounts Positive {Negative) 

REVENUES 
Use of money and property $ - ~ 6,954 $ 6,954 

Intergovernmental 
Other 270,~C1{1 195,{100 {?S,a~O) 

Total revenues 27,000 201,954 {68,046} 

C}THER. FINAI~tCING SC►URCES {USES} 
Transfers out (270,000) { 197,366) ?2,634 

Total other finaneíng sources {uses) {270,000} { 197,366) 72,634 

1~1et change in fund balance - 4,588 4,588 

Fund balance -July 1, 2018 119,535 119,535 - 

Fund balance -June 30, 2019 $ 1192 535 $ 124,123 $ 4,588 



~ITY ~F ()JAI 
~t~Iv1BININ~ STATMENT ~F FIDU~IAR.Y NET Pt~SITIt~N 
PR.I~ATE PtJRPC~SE TRLIST FLTNI~S 
June 3a, 2fl 19 

Housing 11~.DA 
Successor Successor 

Agency Agency Total 

ASSETS 

dash and investments ~ 374,Q52 $ 398,199 ~ 772,251 
I3ue from other funds 124,538 - 124,538 
Notes receivable 1,427,E 11 - 1,427,E 11 

Land 305,888 - 3{15,888 

Total assets 2,232,089 398,199 2,30,288 

LIABILITIES 

Accrued interest payable -City of Ojai - 1,744,254 1,744,254 

Loans payable - Clty of ~~Ja1 - 498,153 498,153 
t)nearned revenue 73,001 345,199 418,200 
L~ue to other funds - 124,538 124,538 

Total liabilities 73,001 2,712,144 2,7$5,145 

1~IET P~}SITII'~IV 
Held in trust $ 2,159?088 $ X2,313,945) $ (154,857} 
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CITY QF tJJAI 
CC)~✓IBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET PSITIt)N 
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FtTNI~S 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Housing RDA 
Successor Successor 
Agency Agency Total 

A~~~~~p~__ ___-_ ____________--__ ______ _----- -.- --_ _ __ ________ ______ ___- __ _ ---__ __-------_______--____----___ 

Property taxes $ - $ 36$,$24 $ 36$,$24 

Use of money and property S,72ó l 0,9b 1 1 b,687 

Total additions 5,726 379,7$5 3$5,511 

L~EDUCTIt~I~S 

Community level©pment 58,008 Só,702 114,710 

Total deductions 5$,00$ Só,702 114,710 

Change in net position {52,282) 323,0$3 270,801 

Total net position-beginning of fiscal year 2,211,370 {2,637,028) {42S,ó58} 

Total net position-end of fiscal year $ 2,159,0$8 $ 2,313,945} $ { 154,$57 
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